
                                                                                                                                                   
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  [6:30 PM] 

2. AGENDA ADDITIONS/CHANGES 

3. APPROVE AGENDA 

4. PUBLIC TO BE HEARD 

a. Comments from Public on Items Not on Agenda 

5. BUSINESS ITEMS  

a. Presentation of Fiscal Year 2020 audit 

b. Consider request from Champlain Valley Exposition for water leak abatement 

c. Consider approval of noise waivers for amplified events at Champlain Valley Exposition 

d. Discussion on how the Village should proceed based upon the merger vote 

e. Consider approval of non-resident on Village Tree Advisory Committee 

f. Consider approval of Informational Hearing and Annual Meeting Warning 

g. *Discussion regarding legal steps regarding merger vote 

6. CONSENT ITEMS                                                                              

a. Approve minutes: February 23, 2021 

b. Approve Maple Street Playground RFP Selection 

c. Check Warrants: #17239 – 2/19/21; #17240 – 2/26/21 

7. READING FILE 

a. Board member comments 

b. Upcoming meeting schedule 

8. EXECUTIVE SESSION   

a. *An executive session is anticipated to discuss legal steps 

9. ADJOURN   
 
This agenda is available in alternative formats upon request. Meetings of the Trustees, like all programs and activities of the Village of Essex 
Junction, are accessible to people with disabilities. For information on accessibility or this agenda, call the Unified Manager's office at 878-6951. 
 
Certification: _______________________      _________________  
                        Date Posted                                   Initials 

VILLAGE OF ESSEX JUNCTION 
TRUSTEES 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
Online 

Essex Junction, VT 05452 
Tuesday, March 9, 2021 

6:30 PM 
E-mail: manager@essexjunction.org www.essexjunction.org Phone: (802) 878-6951 

3/5/2021 

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, this meeting will be held remotely. Available options to watch or join the meeting:  

• WATCH: the meeting will be live-streamed on Town Meeting TV.  

• JOIN ONLINE:  Join Microsoft Teams Meeting.  Depending on your browser, you may need to call in for audio (below).  

• JOIN CALLING: Join via conference call (audio only): (802) 377-3784 | Conference ID: 860 667 959#  

• PROVIDE FULL NAME: For minutes, please provide your full name whenever prompted. 

• CHAT DURING MEETING:  Please use “Chat” to request to speak, only.  Please do not use for comments.   

• RAISE YOUR HAND: Click on the hand in Teams to speak or use the “Chat” feature to request to speak. 

• MUTE YOUR MIC: When not speaking, please mute your microphone on your computer/phone.  

 

https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLljLFn4BZd2NDBcfrHVdIR7eUeko7haxg
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YjBiZjUxMjAtNmZmOS00YjE1LWI2ZjctMmExMGZmODMxY2Ji%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22ecf8d528-f923-4497-9342-6544108d0637%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%227d2b52d1-4870-4b4c-8056-abdf32a00af0%22%7d


Memorandum 
 
To:  Trustees; Evan Teich, Unified Manager 
From:  Sarah Macy, Finance Director 
Re:  Presentation of Audit Report 
Date:  March 3, 2021 
 
Issue 
The issue is to inform the Trustees about the FY20 financial statement audit.  
 
Discussion 
Bill Keyser of Kittell Branagan & Sargent will be giving an overview of the FY20 financial 
statement audit and taking questions.  
 
Cost 
None. 
 
Recommendation 
None. 
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Kittell Branagan & Sargent 
Certified Public Accountants 

Vermont License #167 

To the Board of Trustees 
Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
Essex Junction, Vermont 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Village of Essex Junction, 
Vermont, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the Village's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

154 North Main Street, St. Albans, Vermont 05478 I P 802.524.9531 I 800.499.9531 I F 802.524.9533 

www.kbscpa.com 



To the Board of Selectmen 
Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
Page2 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Essex Junction, Vermont, as of June 30, 2020, 
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on page 35 be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Village of Essex Junction, Vermont's basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor fund 
financial statements and budgetary comparison schedules of the enterprise funds are presented for the 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards .is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining nonmajor fund financial statements and schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the combining nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures 
of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole. 

The budgetary comparisons schedules for the enterprise funds have not been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on them. 



To the Board of Selectmen 
Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
Page 3 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 29, 
2020, on our consideration of the Village of Essex Junction, Vermont's internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion 
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Village of Essex Junction, 
Vermont's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

St. Albans, Vermont 
December 29, 2020 



 

 

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 
Management of the Village of Essex Junction (the “Village”) herein sets forth an overview and analysis of its 
financial operations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

 Assets exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources on June 30, 2020 by $34,807,698 (net 
position). Of this amount, $6,602,777 (unrestricted net position) may be used by the various funds of 
the Village to meet the Village’s ongoing obligations. The balance of net position is made up of 
$28,180,006 invested in capital assets net of related debt and $24,915 restricted for specific purposes.  
 

 The Village’s total net position increased by $2,326,864. Of this amount, net position attributable to 
governmental activities increased by $1,940,546. Net position attributable to business-type activities 
increased by $407,869. 

 
 Fund balances of total governmental funds increased by $891,473 in FY20. The General Fund had 

$536,766 of unassigned fund balance at June 30, 2020 which is equal to 10% of the approved FY21 
General Fund Budget. As of June 30, 2019, the General Fund had $446,256 of unassigned fund 
balance.  
 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The annual financial report consists of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund 
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. 
 
Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide 
readers with a broad overview of the Village of Essex Junction’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-
sector business. 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all of the Village of Essex Junction’s assets and 
liabilities with the difference between the two reported as net position. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the Village’s net position changed during the 
past fiscal year. The statement of activities is on the full accrual basis (i.e. all changes in net position are 
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related 
cash flows) whereas the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances of governmental 
funds is on the modified accrual basis (i.e. revenue is recognized when it becomes measurable and available 
as net current position and expenditures are recognized when the related liability is incurred). Thus in the 
statement of activities revenues and expenses are reported for some items that will only result in cash flows 
in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements combine information from governmental funds (which are 
supported primarily by tax dollars) with information from enterprise funds which are supported by user fees 
and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the Village of Essex Junction include 
general government, public works, community development, public safety, and culture and recreation. The 
business-type activities of the Village include water operations, wastewater treatment, and sanitation lines 
maintenance. The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 1 & 2 of the Financial 
Statements. 
 
Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Village has three types of funds:  
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. The proprietary funds of the Village are all 
Enterprise Funds.  Fund financial statements can be found on pages 3 through 10 of the Financial Statements.  
 
 



 

 

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 
Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is necessary for an 
understanding of the information in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The Notes to the 
Financial Statements follow the basic financial statements in this report.   
 
Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also 
presents certain supplementary information. This supplementary information includes combining statements 
for various funds and budgetary comparison statements for funds other than the Village’s general fund. The 
supplementary information can be found immediately following the notes to the financial statements. 
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Assets:

Cash 1,954$           1,953$           -$               -$               1,954$             1,953$           
   Other Assets 6,926,983      6,049,510      5,278,163      4,754,260      12,205,146      10,803,770    
   Capital Assets 23,005,674    21,919,373    20,600,971    21,451,171    43,606,645      43,370,544    

Total Assets 29,934,611$  27,970,836$  25,879,134$  26,205,431$  55,813,745$    54,176,267$  

Liabilities:

   Other Liabilities 4,456,499$    4,247,974$    1,635,887$    1,301,271$    6,092,386$      5,549,245$    
   Non-Current Liabilities 2,160,171      2,333,312      12,753,490    13,468,853    14,913,661      15,802,165    

Total Liabilities 6,616,670$    6,581,286$    14,389,377$  14,770,124$  21,006,047$    21,351,410$  

Net Position:

   Net Investment in 

      Capital Assets 20,918,483$  19,562,047$  7,261,523$    7,371,294$    28,180,006$    26,933,341$  

   Restricted 24,915           28,969           -                     -                 24,915             28,969           
   Unrestricted 2,374,543      1,798,534      4,228,234      4,064,013      6,602,777        5,862,547      

Total Net Position 23,317,941$  21,389,550$  11,489,757$  11,435,307$  34,807,698$    32,824,857$  

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Government

 
 
As stated in the chart titled Summary Statement of Net Position, assets exceeded liabilities by $34,807,698 
at the end of fiscal year 2020.  Assets at the end of fiscal year 2019 exceeded liabilities by $32,824,857.   
 
The largest portion of the Village’s net position is in its net investment in capital assets (81%). These assets 
are used to provide services to its citizens (e.g. land, buildings, equipment, and infrastructure). Therefore, 
these assets are not available for future spending. 
 
An amount of $24,915 of the Village’s net position is subject to restrictions on how it may be used. These 
funds are restricted for Veterans Memorial Park and for the Senior Center. Unrestricted net assets of 
$6,602,777 may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Some of the 
amounts included in unrestricted net position are committed by the Village or assigned by the Board of 
Trustees for particular purposes (e.g. capital projects). 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenues:

  Program Revenues:

 Charges for Services 406,541$           305,218$           8,813,395$        8,717,596$        9,219,936$        9,022,814$        

 Operating Grants &

    Revenues 1,415,690          1,184,722          -                     -                     1,415,690          1,184,722          

Capital Grants & 

    Revenues 1,411,772          1,140,653          690,916             689,000             2,102,688          1,829,653          

General Revenues:

Property Taxes 3,678,242          3,545,358          -                     -                     3,678,242          3,545,358          

 Unrestricted

  investment earnings 13,137               8,601                 17,602               13,462               30,739               22,063               

Loss on disposal of

   equipment (26,414)              (11,409)              -                     (67,268)              (26,414)              (78,677)              
Other 50,269               12,159               -                     -                     50,269               12,159               

Total Revenues 6,949,237          6,185,302          9,521,913          9,352,790          16,471,150        15,538,092        

Expenses:

Governmental activities

General Government 1,133,807          913,214             -                     -                     1,133,807          913,214             

Public Safety 444,950             452,993             -                     -                     444,950             452,993             

Highways and Streets 1,790,360          1,871,499          -                     -                     1,790,360          1,871,499          

Culture and Recreation 1,591,759          1,756,225          -                     -                     1,591,759          1,756,225          

Interest on Long-Term

  Debt 74,815               81,137               -                     -                     74,815               81,137               

Water -                     -                     3,838,683          3,774,636          3,838,683          3,774,636          

Sanitation -                     -                     601,454             583,037             601,454             583,037             

Wastewater -                     -                     2,856,668          2,916,553          2,856,668          2,916,553          
   Recreation -                     -                     1,790,239          2,093,260          1,790,239          2,093,260          

      Total Expenses 5,035,691          5,075,068          9,087,044          9,367,486          14,122,735        14,442,554        

Changes in net position
     before Transfers 1,913,546          1,110,234          434,869             (14,696)              2,348,415          1,095,538          

     Transfers 27,000               -                     (27,000)              -                     -                     -                     

Increase (Decrease) in

     Net Position 1,940,546          1,110,234          407,869             (14,696)              2,348,415          1,095,538          
Net position - July 1, as

  reported 21,389,550        20,279,316        11,435,307        11,450,003        32,824,857        31,729,319        

Correct Overstatement of

     Revenue (12,155)              -                     (353,419)            -                     (365,574)            -                     

Net position - July 1, as 

     restated 21,377,395        20,279,316        11,081,888        11,450,003        32,459,283        31,729,319        

Ending Net Position 23,317,941$      21,389,550$      11,489,757$      11,435,307$      34,807,698$      32,824,857$      

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government

 
 
Governmental activities.  Governmental activities increased the Village’s net position by $1,940,546 in 
FY20. The Village increased its investment in capital assets by $1,356,436 and unrestricted net position 
increased by $576,009.  Restricted net position decreased by $22,016. Net position in the general fund had 
a prior period adjustment of $12,155 to correct an overstatement of revenue at June 30, 2019 for program 
fees received for programs held in the next fiscal year. 
  
Business-type activities.   Business-type activities increased the Village’s net position by $407,869.   
 
 
 



 

 

 
Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2020 

 
 
Water Fund 
 
The Water Fund had a budgetary net surplus of $42,731 in FY20.  Disregarding GlobalFoundries pass through 
revenues and expenses, Water Fund revenues were $31,802 more than budget while expenses were $9,006 
under budget. Revenue items that were over budget were Residential Water Sales, Penalties, Interest 
Earnings and Miscellaneous Unclassified Revenue. The Water Fund continued work on the Water Meter 
Replacement Program ($23,135) and continued preliminary work on the Railroad Ave. Waterline project, 
Lamoille St. Waterline replacement and Fairview Drive pressure valve connection projects.  
  
Sanitation Fund 
 
The Sanitation Fund had a budgetary net income of $280,875 against a budget of $176,500 in net income.  
Sanitation revenues were $75,879 more than budgeted while expenses were $28,496 less than budgeted.  
Hook-on fees were $54,000 more than budgeted and miscellaneous, penalty and interest revenues exceeding 
anticipated revenues. Village customer charges included $176,500 for the WWTF Refurbishment Bond 
payment. The Sanitation Fund participates by paying 2/3 of the cost of the Meter Replacement Program as it 
funds the costs for both the Sanitation Fund (underground piping) and the Wastewater Treatment Fund 
(wastewater treatment).  Meter replacement costs totaled $46,631 in FY20.  Work on the Pump station control 
cabinet project began in FY20 totaling $4,122.    
 
Wastewater Treatment Fund 
 
The Wastewater Treatment Fund had budgetary net income of $211,031 in FY20. Revenues were over 
budget by $135,784 while expenses were under budget by $75,247.  At year-end 2014, a reconciliation was 
done of revenues versus expenses and it was found that each of the Tri-Town communities was responsible 
for a portion of the surplus. Each community in the Tri-town was designated a portion of the surplus to be a 
buffer against future losses. These funds have been set aside for each community. This reconciliation has 
continued annually and the amounts designated to each community as of June 30, 2020 include Essex 
Junction $300,041; Town of Essex $141,801; and Town of Williston $174,155. Each community determines 
how much it wants to leave in this rate stabilization fund.  Work continued in FY20 on the Alkalinity Control 
Installation and work began on the Flow EQ Digester Reseal and Primary Digester Block projects.   
 
Recreation Programs Fund 
 
On July 1, 2017 the Essex Junction Recreation and Parks (EJRP) became a department of the Village.  EJRP 
had previously been a department of the school district.  EJRP operates the Recreation Programs enterprise 
fund.  The Recreation Programs Fund ended the year with a deficit net position of $173,059.  As an enterprise 
fund it is expected that program revenues generated will cover the costs of programing. Net position in the 
recreation fund had a prior period adjustment of $353,419 to correct an overstatement of revenue at June 30, 
2019 for program fees received for programs held in the next fiscal year.  Program revenues came in under 
budget by $101,073.  Program expenses were under budget by $138,045. The main reason for this was the 
result of the Youth Programs - Aquatic Programs having budgeted revenues of $161,029 and $145,882, 
however the program was discontinued after fiscal year 2019, and therefore, both revenues and expenses 
were under budget, respectively.  Impacts of the COVID pandemic also resulted in some program revenues 
coming in under budget, as well as corresponding expenses for such programs.  While some programs such 
as pool memberships and programing were adversely effected by the COVID pandemic, EJRP was able to 
provide additional summer child care to support essential workers during these trying times.     
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2020 

 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 
The General Fund 
 
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Village. The General Fund had a net increase in fund 
balance of $210,892 for the year ended June 30, 2020.  The fund balance of the General Fund increased 
from $711,939 at the end of FY19, as restated, to $922,831 at the end of FY20.  Of the $922,831 fund balance, 
$150,128 is nonspendable (inventories and prepaid expenses), $235,937 is assigned (see Note 13 for 
additional detail) and $536,766 is unassigned. The unassigned fund balance is equal to 10% of the FY21 
Budget. To comply with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 54, the Village has 
adopted a fund balance policy. Basically this fund balance policy states that the fund balances of 
governmental funds are classified as nonspendable (not in spendable form or legally required to remain 
intact); restricted (constraints on the use of resources are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, or 
donors, or imposed by law through enabling legislation); committed (constraints on the use of resources are 
imposed by formal action of the voters); assigned (reflecting the Board of Trustees intended use of the 
resources); and unassigned.  As of June 30, 2020 the Village General Fund has no committed or restricted 
fund balance. In addition, the Village has a policy limiting unassigned fund balance to 10% of the current 
budget. 
 
The Village budget for the year ended June 30, 2020 passed on the first vote at Village Meeting in April of 
2019 and there were no amendments made to the budget during the year.   
 
On the revenue side, the Village recorded revenues greater than budget by $225,184.  This was primarily 
driven by large unbudgeted revenues (grants and donations) over budget by $152,261 and intergovernmental 
revenues coming in over budget by $43,548. Intergovernmental revenues are mostly revenues from the Town 
of Essex. The Town’s FY20 budget was amended from the floor to include additional funding for paving which 
was then shared with the Village by direction of the Town Selectboard resulting in higher than budgeted 
intergovernmental revenues. Other income was over budget by $18,053 with the majority of that overage 
related to use of the forfeiture funds in the 401(a) pension plan in the amount of $17,466. The forfeiture funds 
are the employer contributions for terminated employees that are not fully vested (at least five years). See 
Note 14.   
 

 General government expenditures were slightly over budget by $2,540. General government 
departments include Administration and Buildings.    

 
 Public safety expenditures were over budget by $133,528, due to unbudgeted grant expenditures for 

the SCBA air packs for the fire department, offset by the unbudgeted grant revenue.   
 

 Public works expenditures were under budget by $45,208, predominantly as a result of paving being 
underspent by $68,303 while other line items such as vehicle maintenance and vehicle repairs were 
over budget. Paving that was underspent has been assigned in fund balance and is slated to be spent 
in FY21. 
 

 Community and economic development expenditures were under budget by $59,227. This was driven 
by legal services being underspent by $12,490, economic development being underspent by $30,257.   
 

 Culture and recreation expenditures were under budget by $17,266 as shifts in salaries and benefits 
and inability to attend trainings and conferences due to COVID were the main factors.   

 
 
 
 

 



 

 

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 
Capital Reserve Fund  
 
The Capital Reserve Fund had a fund balance of $788,307 as of June 30, 2020 and a fund balance of 
$394,157 as of June 30, 2019. The Crescent Connector Project progressed for a cost of $1,155,048 with 
federal grant reimbursement in the year of $1,442,572, the difference is a result of timing between expenditure 
recognition and when the Village receives grant revenues. This project is funded by a grant from the US 
Department of Transportation through the State of Vermont Agency of Transportation and does not require 
matching funds. Additional projects during the year included: the Lamoille St Water line replacement 
($270,224), Densmore Drive Culvert project ($91,311), and Fairview/Main stormwater retention pond 
($177,929).   
 
Whitcomb Terrace Loan Fund 
 
In April of 2004, the Village received a grant of up to $270,000 from the Vermont Agency of Commerce and 
Community Development.  This grant was used in FY05 to construct Whitcomb Terrace, 19 new barrier-free 
units of affordable housing at 128 West Street in Essex Junction. The grant money was used to provide a 
deferred loan to Whitcomb Terrace Housing Limited Partnership for the purpose of constructing Whitcomb 
Terrace. The interest free loan is due to be paid back to the Village on December 17, 2034. The Village has 
a note receivable that is not likely to be paid back and so is carrying a $-0- balance for this note. 
 
Rolling Stock Reserve Fund 
 
The Rolling Stock Reserve Fund had fund balance of $295,683 as of June 30, 20120 and $140,668 as of 
June 30, 2019.  The Village purchased a pickup truck during the fiscal year.  Debt payments on the fire note 
were made for $32,445. This fund received an appropriation from the general fund of $233,624, $4,000 from 
the sale of assets, and just under $5,000 in other revenues.  
 
 
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets 
 
The Village of Essex Junction’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business–type activities 
as of June 30, 2020 totaled $43,606,645 (net of accumulated depreciation). This is a net increase of $236,101 
from June 30, 2019 when the total was $43,370,544. These assets include buildings, roads and bridges, land, 
machinery and equipment, library books, park facilities, vehicles and distribution and collection systems.  
Asset additions totaled $2,445,987 and were concentrated in machinery and equipment and infrastructure 
categories.  These additions were offset by accumulated depreciation which increased by $2,209,886, to 
cause the increase in capital assets net of accumulated depreciation.  
 
The major capital asset transactions during the year for the Governmental Activities were as follows: 
 

 Paving on Cascade Court, Silver Bow Terrace, Stanton Drive, Mill Street, and River Street 
 Stormwater improvements on Fairview and Main Streets 
 Resurfacing of Cascade Street and Maple Street tennis courts 
 Replacement of twenty (20) SCBA Fire Air-paks 
 Purchase of a pickup truck 
 Purchase and installation of (3) pedestrian lights on Main Street, Pearl Street and West Street 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 
The major capital assets transactions during the year for the enterprise activities were as follows: 

 
 SCADA system upgrade at the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
 Installation of pump station control cabinet 
 Water meter purchase and installation is ongoing 

 
A table that shows the values of the Village’s capital assets net of depreciation is shown below. Additional 
information can be found in Note 7 of this report.  
 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Capital Assets:

   Land 127,876$      55,742$        118,077$      118,077$      245,953$      173,819$      

   Construction in Progress 3,668,304     2,203,503     323,945        28,678          3,992,249     2,232,181     

   Antiques and Works of Art 7,550            7,550            -                -                7,550            7,550            

   Buildings and 

       Improvements 4,629,181     4,620,014     15,171,807   15,171,807   19,800,988   19,791,821   

   Machinery, equipment and

     vehicles 8,375,488     8,302,204     5,403,572     5,309,392     13,779,060   13,611,596   

   Library Books 798,033        787,722        -                -                798,033        787,722        

   Parks 1,740,013     1,669,114     -                -                1,740,013     1,669,114     

   Roads, Curbs, Sidewalks 

  & Storm Sewers 14,211,668   13,855,724   164,182        164,182        14,375,850   14,019,906   

   Water and sewer
-                -                22,255,965   22,255,965   22,255,965   22,255,965   

Total Assets 33,558,113   31,501,573   43,437,548   43,048,101   76,995,661   74,549,674   

Less: Accum. Depr. (10,552,439)  (9,582,200)    (22,836,577)  (21,596,930)  (33,389,016)  (31,179,130)  

Total Assets, Net 23,005,674$ 21,919,373$ 20,600,971$ 21,451,171$ 43,606,645$ 43,370,544$ 

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Government

     infrastructure

 
 
Long Term Debt 
 

June 30, 2019 Additions Deletions June 30, 2020

2,267,326$   -$              240,135$      2,027,191$   

90,000          60,000          90,000          60,000          

1,702,374     -                89,565          1,612,809     

12,342,788   -                628,050        11,714,738   
34,415          -                22,514          11,901          

16,436,903$ 60,000$        1,070,264$   15,426,639$ 

Water and Sewer Bonds

Notes Payable
Capital Lease

Total Government

Governmental Activities

General Obligation Bonds

Notes Payable
Business Type Activities

 
 
In FY18 the Village received a loan from People’s United Bank for a new Fire Ladder Truck was issued for 
$150,000 with interest of 1.5% and $30,000 of principal was paid during the first year. The Village intends to 
pay $30,000 a year plus interest and renew the note annually. In FY20 the interest rate was 2.75% and the 
Village paid $30,000 in principal plus interest. The balance on the loan is $60,000. 
  



 

 

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 
On April 8, 2014 the Village voters agreed to issue general obligation bonds in an amount not to exceed 
$3,300,000. In July 2015 $3,300,000 was received from the Vermont Municipal Bond Bank for the purpose of 
performing five infrastructure projects. In FY15 the School St. south Roadway/Water/Sewer line project was 
completed. In FY16 the Hillcrest Drainage project, the Main St. Drainage, the Maple St. Culvert/Water line 
were completed and the Briar Lane Roadway/Sidewalk/Water Line projects were continued. The last project, 
Briar Lane Roadway/Sidewalk and Water Line was completed in FY17. At June 30, 2020 the outstanding 
principal on this bond is $2,475,000; with $2,027,191 in governmental activities and $477,809 in business-
type activities. 
 
As part of Essex Junction Recreation and Parks becoming a department of the Village, the Village acquired 
a bond with the Vermont Municipal Bond Bank for the pool at Maple Street Park. The bond interest was 
5.415% and the final principal payment of $105,000 was made in November 2019.  
 
In FY10 the Village was awarded a loan of $566,938 under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act 
(ARRA) to fund two projects. The projects funded were for a high efficiency blower for the Wastewater 
Treatment Facility and a comprehensive rehabilitation of the Village’s sanitary sewers. Under the ARRA 
program half of the loan was forgiven in the form of a grant. Interest is at 0% but there is a 2% administrative 
fee. The loan was for 20 years and the principal balance due at June 30, 2020 is $169,666. 
 
In FY11 the Village began two long term projects in the Wastewater Treatment Fund and the Sanitation Fund.  
In a special meeting on April 12, 2011, the Village voters authorized the Village to issue bonds for $15,230,000 
for improvements to the Wastewater Treatment Facility and $1,287,000 for the upgrade of Village pump 
stations.  As of June 30, 2016, the High School Pump Station project was complete and the Village had 
borrowed $1,212,300 and received a subsidy of $114,800 from the State Clean Water Revolving Fund in the 
Sanitation Fund. The principal due on the loan as of June 30, 2019 is $862,436. As of June 30, 2015 the 
Village had borrowed $13,525,000 for the Wastewater Treatment Refurbishment Project from the State Clean 
Water Revolving Fund and received a subsidy of $600,000 making the amount due $12,925,000. The first 
payment on this loan of was made in FY17 and the principal due on the loan as of June 30, 2020 is 
$10,732,508. A bond payable for the Wastewater Treatment Refurbishment Project for $1,705,000 was 
assumed from the Town of Bradford.  Principal and interest payments were started in FY12.  As of June 30, 
2020, the principal outstanding on this bond was $1,165,000. The Wastewater Treatment Facility, while 
owned by the Village of Essex Junction serves three towns, the Village of Essex Junction, the Town of Essex 
and the Town of Williston. The debt payments for the Wastewater Treatment Facility are distributed to the Tri-
town members according to capacity owned in the Facility. 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET 
 
Consolidation of Service Delivery Systems 
 
 Starting in FY15 the Town of Essex entered into an agreement with the Village of Essex Junction and the 

Essex Junction School District to bill and collect their property taxes. This action was an effort to reduce 
the duplication of services that existed.  As part of the agreement the Town assumed the delinquent taxes 
of the Village and Village School District. The Town of Essex will continue to do the school tax billing for 
the Essex Westford School District for all residents that reside in the Town of Essex. 
 

 In FY14 the Village and Town entered into an agreement to share the services of the Town Manager as 
the Municipal Manager for both entities. This arrangement led to the Village sharing the salary costs of 
the Manager with the Town, thereby reducing the cost to all taxpayers. In FY15 it was determined that 
this cost sharing was beneficial and efforts should continue to find more areas to cooperate in the delivery 
of services to be more efficient. This arrangement has resulted in substantial savings for both the Village 
and Town.  In FY18 the current Unified Municipal Manager, Pat Scheidel, who has been Town Manager 
for 27 retired.  A new Unified Municipal Manager, Evan Teich, began employment on February 26, 2018.  
The decision to hire Mr. Teich was unanimous by both the Village of Essex Junction Trustees and the 
Town Selectboard. 



 

 

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
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June 30, 2020 
 
 
 FY16 was the first of a three-year commitment to combine the Street budget with the Town of Essex. The 

Village Trustees adopted the Village Street budget and the Town of Essex voters approved the funding 
for this budget as part of the Town budget. A Committee was formed in the spring of 2017 to evaluate 
how successful this arrangement has been so far and whether it should be continued. The Public Works 
Consolidation Committee came to the following conclusions: 

 
o Maintain the MOU until June 2018 and do the studies outlined in the report. 
o Extend the MOU from July 1, 2018 until the studies are complete or well underway. The goal is full 

consolidation eventually. 
o Benchmarks will be established as a result of the studies 
o Cross-train staff in the village and town and identify common best practices 
o Consolidate rolling stock and equipment budgets as well as capital planning. 
o Practice resources management with assets, administration, processes, services. 
o Both the Trustees and the Selectboard approved the report. 

 
 In FY16 the Village and the Town combined accounts payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts 

and general ledger.  Two Village employees were relocated to the Town offices to share this work. 
 

 In FY17 the Village Clerk/Treasurer became the combined Town and Village Clerk/Treasurer when 
the Town Clerk/Treasurer position became vacant through retirement. 

 
 In FY18 a Human Resources Director was hired as the combined Town and Village Human Resource 

Director.  
 

 In FY19 the pay rates and practices of both Fire Departments were aligned. A combined Assistant to 
the Manager position was established which is funded by both entities.   

 
 In FY20, EJRP and the Essex Parks and Recreation Department co-located at 75 Maple Street and 

began streamlining services at the front desk by co-supervising the Customer Service Specialist, the 
Program Director – Senior Services, and by contracting for joint Communications Services. The two 
departments have hosted joint events and have moved to producing one brochure.  

 
 The Village Trustees and Town Selectboard have been meeting jointly and working to put together a 

merger plan for the two entities.  The Village voted during the November 2020 on the plan of merger 
and it passed 3,453 to 1,205.  The Town will vote on this initiative in March 2021.  

 
FY21 Budgets 
 
The FY21 General Fund budget increased by $202,743 or 3.93% from the FY20 budget, bringing total 
budgeted General Fund expenditures to $5,367,655 from $5,164,193. The tax rate increased by 3% from 
$0.3206 to $0.3302. In addition to the General Fund rate, there is a 1 cent tax for Economic Development 
that was added in FY17.   
 
The Village Water, Wastewater and Sanitation Funds saw a budget increase in total of $422,249 or 6.5% 
from an aggregate of $6,477,121 for the three funds to $6,899,370. This caused an overall rate increase for 
FY21 of 6.9% for the average user using 120 gallons per day.  

 
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Village of Essex Junction, Vermont’s 
financial condition. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for 
additional information should be addressed to the Village Finance Director, Village of Essex Junction, 2 
Lincoln Street, Essex Junction, VT  05452. The report is available online at www.essexjunction.org. 



Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash 1,954$            -$                    1,954$            
Other accounts receivable 272,320          1,397,472       1,669,792       
Due from other funds -                      3,796,555       3,796,555       
Due from Town of Essex 6,504,535       -                      6,504,535       
Inventory 106,200          39,990            146,190          
Prepaid expenses 43,928            44,146            88,074            

Total Current Assets 6,928,937       5,278,163       12,207,100     

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 127,876          118,077          245,953          
Construction in progress 3,668,304       323,945          3,992,249       
Antiques and works of art 7,550              -                      7,550              

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Buildings 3,102,948       9,504,052       12,607,000     
Infrastructure 10,021,214     90,402            10,111,616     
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 6,077,782       2,587,649       8,665,431       
Water and sewer infrastructure -                      7,976,846       7,976,846       

Capital assets, net 23,005,674     20,600,971     43,606,645     

Total Assets 29,934,611     25,879,134     55,813,745     

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 408,783          583,632          992,415          
Due to other funds 3,794,552       -                      3,794,552       
Accrued payroll and benefits payable 47,546            80,729            128,275          
Unearned revenue 10,836            223,049          233,885          
Accrued interest 8,651              5,510              14,161            
Current portion compensated absences 20,996            590                 21,586            
Current portion lease payable -                      11,901            11,901            
Current portion notes and bonds payable 165,135          730,476          895,611          

Total Current Liabilities 4,456,499       1,635,887       6,092,386       

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued compensated absences 238,115          156,419          394,534          
Notes and bonds payable 1,922,056       12,597,071     14,519,127     

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 2,160,171       12,753,490     14,913,661     

Total Liabilities 6,616,670       14,389,377     21,006,047     

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 20,918,483     7,261,523       28,180,006     
Restricted 24,915            -                      24,915            
Unrestricted - designated -                      4,228,234       4,228,234       
Unrestricted 2,374,543       -                      2,374,543       

Total Net Position 23,317,941$   11,489,757$   34,807,698$   

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2020

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Operating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

Functions/Programs

Governmental activities

General government 1,133,807$  365,317$     1,300$            -$                   (767,190)$      -$                   (767,190)$      

Public safety 444,950       -                   -                      -                      (444,950)        -                      (444,950)        

Highways and Streets      1,790,360    2,670           1,378,888      1,409,760      1,000,958      -                      1,000,958      

Culture and Recreation 1,591,759    38,554         35,502            2,012              (1,515,691)     -                      (1,515,691)     
Interest on long-term debt 74,815         -                   -                      -                      (74,815)          -                      (74,815)          

Total governmental activities 5,035,691    406,541       1,415,690      1,411,772      (1,801,688)     -                      (1,801,688)     

Business-type activities:

Water 3,838,683    4,006,714    -                      -                      -                     168,031         168,031         

Sanitation 601,454       788,452       -                      103,512         -                     290,510         290,510         
Wastewater 2,856,668    2,206,439    -                      587,404         -                     (62,825)          (62,825)          
Recreation 1,790,239    1,811,790    -                      -                      -                     21,551            21,551           

Total business-type activities 9,087,044$  8,813,395$  -$                   690,916$       -                     417,267         417,267         

General Revenues:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 3,678,242      -                      3,678,242      

Unrestricted investment earnings 13,137           17,602            30,739           

Transfers 27,000           (27,000)          -                     

Loss on disposal of equipment (26,414)          -                      (26,414)          

Other revenues 50,269           -                      50,269           

    Total general revenues and transfers 3,742,234      (9,398)            3,732,836      

        Change in Net Position 1,940,546      407,869         2,348,415      

Net position, beginning (as restated) 21,377,395    11,081,888    32,459,283    

Net position, ending 23,317,941$  11,489,757$  34,807,698$  

Program Revenues

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

 For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Net (Expense) Revenue and

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Changes in Net Position

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Capital Rolling Stock Non-Major Total

General Projects Reserve Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash 1,854$             -$                     -$                  100$             1,954$             

Other receivables 31,949             240,371           -                    -                    272,320           

Inventory 106,200           -                       -                    -                    106,200           

Due from Town of Essex 6,504,535       -                       -                    -                    6,504,535       

Due from other funds -                       867,671           328,128        620,315        1,816,114       
Prepaid expenses 43,928             -                       -                    -                    43,928             

Total Assets 6,688,466       1,108,042       328,128        620,415        8,745,051       

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 75,835             300,228           32,445          275               408,783           

Accrued payroll and benefits 47,546             -                       -                    -                    47,546             

Due to other funds 5,610,666       -                       -                    -                    5,610,666       
Unearned Revenue 10,836             -                       -                    -                    10,836             

              
Total Liabilities 5,744,883       300,228           32,445          275               6,077,831       

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable grant revenue 20,752             19,507             -                    -                    40,259             

FUND BALANCE

Nonspendable 150,128           -                       -                    -                    150,128           

Restricted -                       -                       -                    24,915          24,915             

Committed -                       788,307           295,683        140,016        1,224,006       

Assigned 235,937           -                       -                    455,209        691,146           
Unassigned 536,766           -                       -                    -                    536,766           

Total Fund Balances 922,831           788,307           295,683        620,140        2,626,961       

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows 
of Resources and Fund Balances 6,688,466$     1,108,042$     328,128$      620,415$      8,745,051$     

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2020

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Total fund balances - governmental funds 2,626,961$    

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets
  are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
  and therefore are not reported as assets in governmental funds. 23,005,674    

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period 
  expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds

Unavailable grant revenue 40,259           

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
  in the current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities

  in the funds:

Accrued compensated absences (259,111)        

Accrued interest on long-term debt (8,651)            

Notes payable (2,087,191)     

Total net position - governmental activities 23,317,941$   

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2020

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Capital Rolling Stock Non-Major Total
General Projects Reserve Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

REVENUES

Property tax 3,556,878$  -$                 -$                 110,944$     3,667,822$  
Licenses and permits 40,795         -                   -                   -                   40,795         
Intergovernmental revenues 1,295,424    89,938         -                   -                   1,385,362    
Charges for services 305,190       -                   -                   5,354           310,544       
Fines and forfeits 2,703           -                   -                   -                   2,703           
Interest income 5,073           3,191           1,304           3,570           13,138         
Grant income -                   1,636,002    -                   -                   1,636,002    
Donations 152,761       -                   3,600           -                   156,361       
Miscellaneous income 31,273         20,000         -                   6,771           58,044         

Total Revenues 5,390,097    1,749,131    4,904           126,639       7,270,771    

EXPENDITURES

Current expenditures:
General government 801,598       -                   -                   -                   801,598       

 Public safety 338,063       -                   -                   -                   338,063       
 Public works 985,089       22,374         -                   -                   1,007,463    
 Community development 236,417       -                   -                   95,077         331,494       
 Culture and recreation 1,314,243    -                   -                   11,167         1,325,410    
Capital Outlay

General government 72,134         -                   -                   -                   72,134         
Public safety 147,325       -                   55,068         -                   202,393       
Public works 152,079       1,698,021    -                   -                   1,850,100    
Culture and recreation 58,042         -                   -                   77,595         135,637       

Debt Service
Principal 240,135       -                   30,000         -                   270,135       
Interest expense 73,426         -                   2,445           -                   75,871         

Total Expenditures 4,418,551    1,720,395    87,513         183,839       6,410,298    

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures 971,546       28,736         (82,609)        (57,200)        860,473       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets -                   -                   4,000           -                   4,000           
Operating transfers in -                   365,414       233,624       188,616       787,654       
Operating transfers out (760,654)      -                   -                   -                   (760,654)      

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (760,654)      365,414       237,624       188,616       31,000         

Net Change in Fund Balance 210,892       394,150       155,015       131,416       891,473       

Fund Balance - July 1, 2019 (as restated) 711,939       394,157       140,668       488,724       1,735,488    

Fund Balance - June 30, 2020 922,831$     788,307$     295,683$     620,140$     2,626,961$  

 For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Net change in fund balances - governmental funds 891,473$     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of

Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However,

  in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated

   over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Depreciation Expense (1,143,549)   

Capital Outlay 2,260,264    

Loss on Disposal/Abandonment (26,414)        

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Asset (4,000)          

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial 

  resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Decrease in  other unavailable revenue (316,180)      

Decrease in unavailable revenue 20,750         

Issuance and repayment of long-term debt are revenue and expenditures in

  the governmental funds, but the Issuance and repayment increase and

  decrease long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.

Repayment of long-term debt 270,135       

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of 

  current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in

  governmental funds.

Accrued interest on long-term debt 1,057           

Accrued compensated absences (12,990)        

Change in net position of governmental activities 1,940,546$  

 For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Water Sanitation Wastewater Rec Programs
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

Current Assets:

Cash -$                   -$                   -$                      -$                       -$                      

Accounts receivable, net of allowance 600,264         192,630         597,365           7,213                 1,397,472        

Due from other funds 340,305         1,683,591      1,613,716        158,943             3,796,555        

Inventory -                     -                     39,990              -                         39,990              
Prepaid expenses 6,621             7,346             8,545                21,634               44,146              

Total Current Assets 947,190         1,883,567      2,259,616        187,790             5,278,163        

Noncurrent Assets:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land -                     -                     118,077 -                         118,077           

Construction in progress 143,748 4,122 176,075 -                         323,945           
Capital assets

Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 547,057         786,924         19,125,896      115,502             20,575,379      
Water and sewer infrastructure 9,202,643      8,503,169      4,714,335        -                         22,420,147      
Accumulated depreciation (7,531,168)    (6,290,141)    (8,944,335)       (70,933)             (22,836,577)     

Capital assets, net 2,362,280      3,004,074      15,190,048      44,569               20,600,971      

Total Noncurrent Assets 2,362,280      3,004,074      15,190,048      44,569               20,600,971      

Total Assets 3,309,470$   4,887,641$   17,449,664$    232,359$          25,879,134$    

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 385,497$       4,004$           116,429$         77,702$             583,632$         

Accrued payroll 3,361             2,959             13,491              60,918               80,729              

Accrued interest 1,912             -                     3,331                267                    5,510                

Unearned Revenue -                     -                     -                        223,049             223,049           

Current portion compensated absences -                     -                     -                        590                    590                   

Current portion lease payable -                     -                     -                        11,901               11,901              
Current portion long-term debt 29,865           64,811           635,800           -                         730,476           

Total Current Liabilities 420,635         71,774           769,051           374,427             1,635,887        

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Accrued compensated absences 14,960           16,668           93,800              30,991               156,419           
Notes and bonds payable 417,944         893,374         11,285,753      -                         12,597,071      

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 432,904         910,042         11,379,553      30,991               12,753,490      

Total Liabilities 853,539         981,816         12,148,604      405,418             14,389,377      

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 1,914,471      2,045,889      3,268,495        32,668               7,261,523        
Unrestricted - designated 541,460         1,859,936      2,032,565        (205,727)           4,228,234        

Total Net Position 2,455,931      3,905,825      5,301,060        (173,059)           11,489,757      

 Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
 of Resources and Net Position 3,309,470$   4,887,641$   17,449,664$    232,359$          25,879,134$    

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2020

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ASSETS

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Water Sanitation Wastewater Rec Programs
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

OPERATING REVENUES

 Charges for services 4,005,796$  778,982$     2,142,794$  1,809,765$     8,737,337$    
Other income 918              9,470           63,645         2,025             76,058           

Total Operating Revenues 4,006,714    788,452       2,206,439    1,811,790       8,813,395      

OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating, maintenance and general

      and administrative expenses 3,704,662    419,558       1,870,049    1,773,989       7,768,258      
Depreciation   118,498       161,500       943,401       16,250           1,239,649      

Total Operating Expenses 3,823,160    581,058       2,813,450    1,790,239       9,007,907      

Operating Income (Loss) 183,554       207,394       (607,011)      21,551           (194,512)        

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Investment income 1,115           6,981           9,675           (169)               17,602           
Interest expense (15,523)        (20,396)        (43,218)        -                     (79,137)          
Capital contributions -                  103,512       587,404       -                     690,916         

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (14,408)        90,097         553,861       (169)               629,381         

Net Income (Loss) Before Transfers 169,146       297,491       (53,150)        21,382           434,869         

Transfers -                  (253,071)      253,071       (27,000)          (27,000)          

Change in Net Position 169,146       44,420         199,921       (5,618)            407,869         

Net Position - July 1, 2019 (as restated) 2,286,785    3,861,405    5,101,139    (167,441)        11,081,888    

Net Position - June 30, 2020 2,455,931$  3,905,825$  5,301,060$  (173,059)$      11,489,757$  

 For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Water Sanitation Wastewater Rec Programs
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers 3,911,321$  761,875$     1,900,684$  1,685,938$      8,259,818$   
Payments to suppliers (3,483,479)   (298,417)      (1,324,053)   (247,528)          (5,353,477)    
Payments for employees and benefits (225,895)      (188,127)      (575,888)      (1,387,910)       (2,377,820)    

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 201,947       275,331       743              50,500             528,521        

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
   RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property, plant and equipment (157,598)      (50,754)        (181,094)      -                       (389,446)       
Capital Contributions -                   103,512       587,404       690,916        
Interest payments on debt (15,599)        (20,396)        (43,352)        -                       (79,347)         
Principal payments on debt (29,865)        (61,603)        (626,447)      -                       (717,915)       

Interest payment on capital lease -                   -                   -                   (814)                 (814)              
Principal payment on capital lease -                   -                   -                   (22,514)            (22,514)         

Net Cash Used by Capital and

Related Financing Activities (203,062)      (29,241)        (263,489)      (23,328)            (519,120)       

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Operating transfers in/(out) -                   (253,071)      253,071       (27,000)            (27,000)         
Interest income 1,115           6,981           9,675           (172)                 17,599          

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Investing Activities 1,115           (246,090)      262,746       (27,172)            (9,401)           

Net Increase in Cash -                   -                   -                   -                       -                    

Cash - July 1, 2019 -                   -                   -                   -                       -                    

Cash - June 30, 2020 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                  

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
  provided by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 183,554$     207,394$     (607,011)$    21,551$           (194,512)$     
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
  cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 118,498       161,500       943,401       16,250             1,239,649     
Change in net assets and liabilities:

Receivables, net (95,393)        (26,577)        (305,755)      4,518               (423,207)       
Inventory -                   -                   (19,190)        -                       (19,190)         
Due from other funds (81,108)        (63,210)        (24,613)        91,575             (77,356)         
Prepaid expenses (1,819)          (3,755)          (64)               1,488               (4,150)           
Accounts payable 74,356         (3,977)          1,192           17,890             89,461          
Unearned Revenue -                   -                   -                   (130,370)          (130,370)       
Accrued payroll 797              752              4,144           14,899             20,592          
Accrued compensated absences 3,062           3,204           8,639           12,699             27,604          

Net cash provided by operating activities 201,947$     275,331$     743$            50,500$           528,521$      

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Agency
Funds

ASSETS
Cash 2,003$         

LIABILITIES
Due to other funds 2,003           

Total Liabilities and Net Position 2,003$         

June 30, 2020

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FUND
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

10



 

 

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The Village of Essex Junction, Vermont, (herein the "Village") operates under a Board of 
Trustees-Manager form of government and provides the following services as authorized by its 
charter: public safety, library, highways and streets, sanitation, health and social services, 
culture and recreation, community/economic development, public improvements, planning and 
zoning, water, sanitation, wastewater treatment and general administrative services. 

 
The accounting policies adopted by the Village conform to generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP) as applicable to governmental entities. The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing accounting 
and financial reporting principles. The following is a summary of the more significant 
accounting policies employed in the preparation of these financial statements. 

 
Financial Reporting Entity 
This report includes all of the funds of the Village of Essex Junction, Vermont. The reporting 
entity consists of the primary government; organizations for which the primary government is 
financially accountable; and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their 
relationship with the primary government are such that their exclusion would cause the 
reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Component units are 
legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government are 
financially accountable. The primary government is financially accountable if it appoints a 
voting majority of the organization's governing body and it is able to impose its will on that 
organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to 
or burdens on the primary government. The primary government is financially accountable if an 
organization is fiscally dependent on and there is a potential for the organization to provide 
specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the primary government 
regardless of whether the organization has a separately elected governing board; a governing 
board appointed by a higher level of government; or a jointly appointed board. Based on these 
criteria, there are no other entities that should be combined with the financial statements of the 
Village. 

 
  Basis of Presentation 

The accounts of the Village are organized and operated on the basis of fund accounting. A 
fund is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a separate set of self-balancing 
accounts which comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows 
of resources, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. 
Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the 
purposes for which they are spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. 

 
The basic financial statements of the Village include both government-wide statements and 
fund financial statements. The focus of the government-wide statements is on reporting the 
operating results and financial position of the Village as a whole and presents a longer-term 
view of the Village's finances. The focus of the fund financial statements is on reporting the 
operating results and financial position of the most significant funds of the Village and presents 
a shorter-term view of how operations were financed and what remains available for future 
spending. 
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Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities. These statements report financial information of the Village as a whole. 
Individual funds are not displayed but the statements distinguish governmental activities, 
generally supported by taxes and Village general revenues, from business-type activities, 
generally financed in whole or in part with fees charged to external customers. For the most 
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 

 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable 
with a specific program. Program revenues include 1) charges to applicants who purchase, 
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and 2) 
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements 
of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues 
are reported instead as general revenues. 

 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and 
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial 
statements.  Major individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate 
columns in the fund financial statements. 

 
Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government’s general activities, 
including the collection and disbursement of earmarked monies (special revenue funds), and 
the acquisition or construction of general fixed assets (capital projects). The general fund is 
used to account for all activities of the general government not accounted for in some other 
fund. 

 
Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that 
the costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis is to be 
financed or recovered primarily through user charges. 

 
Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the Village as an agent for individuals, 
private organizations, other governments and/or other funds. Agency Funds are custodial in 
nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. 

 
  Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial 
statements.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability 
is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes, sewer usage fees 
and water usage fees are recognized under the susceptible to accrual concept in accordance 
with Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") pronouncements. Revenues 
received from the State of Vermont are also recognized when susceptible to accrual. 
Miscellaneous revenues and fees are recorded as revenue when received in cash because 
they are generally not measurable until actually received. Investment earnings are recorded as 
earned since they are measurable and available. 

 
 
 

 
12 



 

 

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
  
 Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 

measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized 
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available 
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of 
the current period. For this purpose, the Village considers revenues to be available if they are 
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service 
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, are recorded only 
when payment is due. 

 
 Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and 

expenses related to the primary, continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating 
revenues for proprietary funds are charges to customers for sales or services. Principal 
operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or services and include administrative 
expenses and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues and expenses are classified as 
non-operating in the financial statements. 

 
The Village reports the following major governmental funds: 

 
General Fund - This is the Village's main operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of 
the Village except those accounted for in another fund. 

 
Capital Reserve Fund - This fund accounts for the general capital expenditures of the Village. 

 
Rolling Stock Reserve Fund - This fund accounts for general rolling stock (vehicles) purchases 
of the Village. 

 
 The Village reports on the following major enterprise funds: 
 

Water Fund - This fund accounts for the operations of the Water Department. 
 

Sanitation Fund -This fund accounts for the operations of the Sanitation Department. 
 

Wastewater Fund - This fund accounts for the operations of the Wastewater Department. 
 
Recreation Programs Fund – This fund accounts for the operations of the recreation programs. 

 
Additionally, the Village reports the following fund type: 

 
Agency Funds - These funds account for monies maintained for the Champlain Valley Exposition 
Noise Escrow. 

 
 Amounts reported as program revenues include: 
 

1)  charges to individuals and business for fees, rental, material, supplies, or services, 
provided  

2)  operating grants and contributions 
3)  capital grants and contributions 
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Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Property taxes, licenses, ordinance violation fees and interest associated with the current fiscal 
period arc all considered susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the 
current fiscal period. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying 
expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been met, and the 
amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source (within 
sixty (60) days of year-end). All other revenue items are considered to be measureable and 
available only when cash is received by the Village. 

 
General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds 
of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing 
sources. 

 
Under the terms of grant agreements, the Village funds certain programs by a combination of 
specific cost-reimbursement grants and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are 
incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net positions available to finance the program. It 
is the Village's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed 
by general revenues. Expenditure driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying 
expenditures have been incurred and other grant requirements have been met. 

 
 Deposits and Investments 

The Village’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, 
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition. The Village utilizes one cash account maintained by the Town general fund to 
collect money and pay bills for all funds. When money is collected and expended, the Village 
records a corresponding payable or receivable to the Town. This helps manage cash and 
eases administrative burdens.  
 

  Receivables 
Receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts for the estimated losses 
that will be incurred in the collection of the receivables. The estimated losses are based on the 
judgment of management and a review of the current status of existing receivables. 
 
Unbilled revenues consist of revenues earned as of June 30, but not yet billed as of that date. 
 

  Internal Balances 
Activities between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements that are 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as Advances to/from Other Funds. All 
other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds". Any 
residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities 
are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances". 
 

  Inventories and Prepaid Expenses 
Inventory quantities are determined by physical count and are valued at the lower of cost or 
market. Inventories in the Proprietary Funds consist of chemicals and materials. Inventory in the 
General Fund consists of salt and calcium chloride. 

 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs that are applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid expenses. 
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Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
 Inventories and prepaid expenses of governmental funds in the fund financial statements are 

offset by a nonspendable fund balance as these are not in spendable form. 
 
  Capital Assets 

Capital assets are reported at actual cost or estimated historical cost based on appraisals or 
deflated current replacement cost if purchased or constructed. Contributed assets are recorded at 
their estimated fair value at the time received. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are 
capitalized as constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase for proprietary fund 
capital assets is reflected in the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of any interest earned 
on the invested proceeds during the same period. Interest is not capitalized during the construction 
phase of capital assets used in governmental activities. The cost of normal maintenance and 
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the assets' lives are not 
capitalized. The Village has elected to report major general infrastructure assets constructed since 
1990. 

 
Capital assets reported in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are 
depreciated in order that the cost of these assets will be charged to expenses over their estimated 
service lives, generally using the straight-line method of calculating depreciation. 

 
Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values above which asset acquisitions are added to the 
capital asset accounts) and estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows: 
 

Capitalization Estimated
 Threshold Service Life

Land 1,000$        Not Depreciated

Antiques and Works of Art 1,000$        Not Depreciated

Buildings and Building Improvements 5,000$        40 Years

Vehicles, Machinery, Equipment, Furniture

  and Traffic Signals 5,000$        8-20 Years

Wastewater Treatment Facility Equipment 5,000$        8-20 Years

Library Books 1$               7 Years

Parks 5,000$        20-100 Years

Infrastructure 5,000$        30-50 Years

Water, Sanitation and Wastewater

  Distribution and Collection System 5,000$        60-100 Years  
 

Capital assets are not reported in the governmental fund financial statements. Capital outlays in 
these funds are recorded as expenditures in the year they are incurred. 
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Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

  Compensated Absences 
It is the Village's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and 
comp time benefits. The Village also pays 50% of accumulated sick time over 800 hours at 
retirement if the employee has 15 years of service. The maximum payout amount is limited to 500 
hours. If an employee terminates after age 62, or if they die sooner, the Village will pay up to 800 
hours of accumulated sick leave regardless of years of service. The Village evaluates all employees 
who have reached ten (10) years of service or age 57 and, depending on accrued leave time at that 
point, determines if they will likely meet the eligibility threshold. The accrual for unused 
compensated absences time, based on current pay rates, is recorded in the government-wide 
and proprietary fund financial statements. The liability for unused compensated absences is not 
reported in the governmental fund type financial statements. 

 
Payments for unused compensated absences are recorded as expenditures in the year they are 
paid. 

 
  Long-term Obligations 

Noncurrent liabilities are comprised of notes payable and compensated absences. Noncurrent 
liabilities are reported in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. 
Governmental fund type financial statements do not include any noncurrent liabilities as those 
statements use the current financial resources measurement focus and only include current 
liabilities on their balance sheets. 
 

  Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, "deferred outflows of 
resources", represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will 
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditures) until then. The Village did not 
have any items that qualified for reporting in this category. 

 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, "deferred inflows of 
resources", represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not 
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Village has one (1) type of 
item which qualifies under the modified accrual basis of accounting. The governmental funds 
report deferred inflows of resources from one (1) source: unavailable grant revenue. These amounts 
are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become 
available. 
 

 Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Net Position 
 Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Net Position are divided into three components: 
   

  Net Investment in Capital Assets – consist of the historical cost of capital assets less 
accumulated depreciation and less any debt that remains outstanding that was used to 
finance those assets. 

 
  Restricted – consists of net position that is restricted by the Village’s creditors, by enabling 

legislation, by grantors (both federal and state) and/or by contributors. 
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Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
  Unrestricted – all other net position reported in this category 

 
 Governmental Fund Balances 
 In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified as follows: 
 
 Nonspendable – Amounts that cannot be spent because they are not spendable in form or 

are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
 

 Restricted – Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of laws, 
regulations or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors. 

 
 Committed – Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal 

action by the Village. 
 
 Assigned – Amounts that are designated by management for a particular purpose 
 

 Unassigned – All amounts not included in other classifications. 
 

 Estimates 
  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 

principles require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain 
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

 
 Operating Transfers 
  Operating transfers are legally authorized transfers from a fund receiving revenue to the fund 

through which the resources are to be expended. 
 
 
NOTE 2 EXPLANATION OF DIFFERENCES BETWEEN GOVERNMENTAL FUND AND GOVERNMENT- 

WIDE STATEMENTS 
 

Governmental Fund financial statements are presented using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting, while government-wide 
financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. These differences in the measurement focus and basis of accounting 
lead to differences between the governmental fund financial statements and the government-wide 
financial statements as follows: 

 
Long-term revenue differences arise because governmental funds report revenues only when 
they are considered "available", whereas government-wide statements report revenues when they 
are earned. Long-term expense differences arise because governmental funds report 
expenditures (including interest) using the modified accrual basis of accounting, whereas 
government-wide statements report expenses using the accrual basis of accounting. 
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Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 

NOTE 2 EXPLANATION OF DIFFERENCES BETWEEN GOVERNMENTAL FUND AND GOVERNMENT- 
WIDE STATEMENTS (continued) 

 
Capital-related differences arise because governmental funds report capital outlays as current 
period expenditures, whereas government-wide statements report depreciation as an expense. 
Further, governmental funds report the proceeds from the sale of capital assets as another 
financing source, whereas government-wide statements report the gain or loss from the sale of 
capital assets as revenue or expense. 

 
Long-term debt transaction differences arise because governmental funds report proceeds of 
long-term debt as another financing source and principal payments as expenditures, whereas 
government-wide statements report those transactions as increases and decreases in liabilities. 

 
 
NOTE 3 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 

Budgetary Information 
The General Fund Budget is approved at the annual Village Meeting in April. Budget transfers 
between departments can be made upon the approval of the Trustees during the last three (3) 
months of the year without increasing the total appropriated amount.  

 
Enterprise fund budgets are approved by the Board of Trustees. 

 
  Fund Balance Policy 

At the April, 2011 annual meeting, the Voters approved maintaining an unassigned fund balance of 
no more than ten percent (10%) of the prior year's budget. 

 
 
NOTE 4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2020 consisted of the following: 
 

Book Bank 
Balance Balance

Insured by the FDIC 3,532$          2,988$          
Petty Cash 425               425               

Total Deposits 3,957$          3,413$           
 
 The difference between the book and bank balance is due to reconciling items such as 

deposits in transit and outstanding checks. 
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Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 
  

Custodial Credit Risk 
 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository 
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover 
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for 
investments is the risk that, in the event of failure of the counter-party (e.g. broker-dealer) to a 
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral 
securities that are in possession of another party. The Village's policy only allows deposits in 
banks that are FDIC insured and agree to collateralize amounts in excess of FDIC limits. The 
Village does not have investments subject to credit risk in fiscal year 2020.  

 
Interest Rate Risk 

 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair 
value to changes in market interest rates. The Village has no investments subject to interest 
rate risk disclosure 

  
Credit Risk 

 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder 
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization. The Village's policy does not allow investment in securities that are 
subject to credit risk unless issued by the Federal Government. 

 
Concentration of Credit Risk 

 
The Village has no limit on the amount that they may invest with any one issuer.   As of June 30, 
2020, the Village is not exposed to concentration of credit risk. 

 
 
NOTE 5 RECEIVABLES  
 

Receivables at June 30, 2020, as reported in the statement of net position, net of applicable 
allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 

 

GovernmentalBusiness-Type
Activities Activities Total

Billed Services -$                  689,960$      689,960$      

Unbilled Services -                    707,512        707,512        

Grants 220,372 -                    220,372        
Other 51,948          -                    51,948          

272,320$      1,397,472$   1,669,792$    
 

Management has evaluated all receivables and believes all are collectible, so no allowance for 
doubtful accounts has been recorded. 
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Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 6 NOTE RECEIVABLE 
 

The Village has a note receivable as follows: 
 

Note Receivable- Whitcomb Terrace Housing

Limited Partnership, Principal Deferred Until

December 17, 2034, at which Time the Note is

Due, Interest 0%, Secured by a 2nd Position on Building 260,000$      

Allowance for Doubtful Note Receivable (260,000)       

Net Note Receivable -$                   
 
 
NOTE 7 CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
 Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending
Governmental Activities Balance Increase Decrease Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 55,742$        72,134$      -$                 127,876$      

Construction in Progress 2,203,503     1,698,021   (233,220)      3,668,304
Antiques and Works of Art 7,550            -                  -                   7,550            

Total capital assets not being depreciated 2,266,795     1,770,155   (233,220)      3,803,730     

Other capital assets:

Buildings and Improvements 4,620,014     9,167          -                   4,629,181

Vehicles, Machinery, Equipment, Furniture -                   

and Traffic Signals 8,302,204     229,277      (155,993)      8,375,488

Library Books 787,722        58,042        (47,731)        798,033

Parks 1,669,114     70,899        -                   1,740,013
Roads, Curbs, Sidewalks, and Storm Sewers 13,855,724   355,944      -                   14,211,668   

Total other capital assets 29,234,778   723,329      (203,724)      29,754,383    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20 



 

 

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 7 CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 
 

Beginning Ending
Governmental Activities (cont'd) Balance Increase Decrease Balance

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and Improvements (1,410,645)   (115,588)     -                   (1,526,233)    

Vehicles, Machinery, Equipment, Furniture 

and Traffic Signals (2,801,299)   (388,438)     125,579        (3,064,158)    

Library Books (586,515)      (56,970)       47,731          (595,754)       

Parks (1,098,487)   (77,353)       -                   (1,175,840)    
Roads, Curbs, Sidewalks, and Storm Sewers (3,685,254)   (505,200)     -                   (4,190,454)    

Total accumulated depreciation (9,582,200)   (1,143,549)  173,310        (10,552,439)  

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 19,652,578   (420,220)     (30,414)        19,201,944   

Governmental Activities - Capital Assets, Net 21,919,373$ 1,349,935$ (263,634)$    23,005,674$   
 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions, as follows: 

 
General Government 23,970$        
Public Safety 106,887        

Highways and Streets 764,025        

Culture and Recreation 247,492        
Community Development 1,175            

    TOTAL 1,143,549$    
 

Beginning Ending
Business-Type Activities Balance Increase Decrease Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 118,077$       -$                -$                118,077$      
Construction in progress 28,678           295,267      -              323,945        

Total capital assets not being depreciated 146,755         295,267      -                  442,022        

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and Improvements 15,171,807    -                  -                  15,171,807

Vehicles, Machinery, Equipment and Furniture 5,309,395      94,177        -                  5,403,572

Infrastructure 164,182         -                  -                  164,182
Distribution and Collection Systems 22,255,965    -                  -                  22,255,965   

Total Capital assets being depreciated 42,901,349    94,177        -                  42,995,526    
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Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 

NOTE 7 CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 
 

Beginning Ending
Business-Type Activities (cont'd) Balance Increase Decrease Balance

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and Improvements (5,155,975)    (511,780)     -                  (5,667,755)    

Vehicles, Machinery, Equipment and Furniture (2,486,100)    (329,823)     -                  (2,815,923)    

Infrastructure (65,571)         (8,209)         -                  (73,780)         
Distribution and Collection Systems (13,889,282)  (389,837)     -                  (14,279,119)  

Total accumulated depreciation (21,596,928)  (1,239,649)  -                  (22,836,577)  

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 21,304,421    (1,145,472)  -                  20,158,949   

Business-Type Activities - Capital Assets, Net 21,451,176$  (850,205)$   -$            20,600,971$  
  

Depreciation expense was charged as follows: 
 

Water Fund 118,498$    
Sanitation Fund 161,500      

Wastewater Fund 943,401      
Recreation Fund 16,250        

    TOTAL 1,239,649$  
 
 
NOTE 8  INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY  
 

The composition of interfund balances at June 30, 2020 is as follows: 
 

Due from Due to 
Fund Other Funds Other Funds

General Fund -$                  5,610,666$   
Capital Projects Fund 867,671        -                    
Rolling Stock Reserve Fund 328,128        -                    

Water Fund 340,305        -                    
Sanitation Fund 1,683,591     -                    

Wastewater Fund 1,613,716     -                    

Recreation Fund 158,943        -                    

Memorial Park Fund 3,655            -                    

Senior Center Fund 21,435          -                     
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Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 

NOTE 8  INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY (continued) 
 

Due from Due to 

Fund Other Funds Other Funds

EJRP Capital Reserve Fund 57,767          -                    

Building Maintenance Fund 101,631        -                    

Economic Development Fund 353,578        -                    

Land Acquisition Reserve Fund 82,249          -                    
Agency Fund -                    2,003            

5,612,669$   5,612,669$    
 
NOTE 9 TRANSFERS 
 
 The interfund transfers during the year ended June 30, 2020 were as follows: 
 

Transfer From Transfer To Amount Purpose

General Fund Rolling Stock Reserve Fund 233,624$      Annual Appropriation

General Fund Capital Reserve 365,414        Annual Appropriation

General Fund Building Maintenance Fund 50,000          Annual Appropriation

EJRP EJRP Capital Reserve Fund 27,000          Capital Outlay
General Fund EJRP Capital Reserve Fund 111,616        Annual Appropriation

Total Governmental Activities 787,654$      

Transfer From Transfer To Amount Purpose

Sanitation Fund Wastewater Fund 305,879$      Bond Debt Service

Wastewater Fund Sanitation Fund 52,808          WWTF Upgrade

EJRP EJRP Capital Reserve 27,000          Capital Outlay

Total Proprietary Funds 385,687$       
 

 
NOTE 10 UNEARNED REVENUE AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
 
  Unearned Revenue is the General Fund consists of $6,509 in recreation fees paid in advance 

and $4,327 in donation revenue received in advance. Unavailable Revenue in the General 
Fund consists of $20,752 in grant receivables not collected within sixty (60) days after 
year-end as these would not be available to liquidate current liabilities.  

 
The Capital Projects Fund has deferred inflows of resources in the amount of $19,507. This 
consists of grant receivables not collected within sixty (60) days after year-end as these would 
not be available to liquidate current liabilities.  

 
23 



 

 

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 11  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 

General Obligation Bonds - The Village issues general obligation bonds to provide resources for the 
acquisition and construction of major capital facilities and to refund prior issues. General obligation 
bonds have been issued for proprietary activities. Bonds are reported in governmental activities if the 
debt is expected to be repaid from general governmental revenues and in business-type 
(proprietary) activities if the debt is expected to be repaid from proprietary fund revenues. 

 
General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the Village. New 
bonds generally are issued as 10 to 30 year bonds. Refunding bonds are issued for various terms 
based on the debt service of the debt refunded. 

 
Notes Payable - The Village has notes payable to finance various capital projects and purchases 
through local banks. 

 
No-Interest Revolving Loans - The State of Vermont offers a number of no and low interest 
revolving loan programs to utilize for predetermined purposes. The Village has borrowed money from 
the Vermont Special Environmental Revolving Fund for sanitation and wastewater projects. 
 
Compensated Absences - Unused vacation time can be accumulated up to 240 hours as of an 
employee's anniversary date. Compensatory time for hourly employees can be accrued up to 
200 hours. Employees with more than 15 years of service to the Village will be paid for half of their 
accumulated sick hours in excess of 800 hours up to 500 hours and employees that terminate after 
age 62 will be paid up to 800 hours of accumulated sick leave at their current rate of pay upon 
retirement, termination or death. 

 
Long-term liabilities outstanding as of June 30, 2020 were as follows: 
 

Beginning Principal Ending
Balance Additions Reduction Balance

Notes Payable

Note Payable- People's United Bank, Fire Ladder Truck

Purchase, Interest at 2.75%, $90,000

Due July 24,2020, the Village Intends to

Renew the Note Annually and Pay down

$30,000 Plus Interest Annually 90,000$         60,000$        (90,000)$       60,000$        

Bond Payable - Vermont Municipal Bond

Bank, Infrastructure Projects, Net Interest
cost of 3.403% semi-annual Interest 

Payments Due June 1, and Dec 1, 

Due in full December 2035. 2,162,326      -                    (135,135)       2,027,191     

Governmental Activities
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Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 

NOTE 11 LONG -TERM LIABILITIES (continued) 
 

Beginning Principal Ending
Balance Additions Reduction Balance

Bond Payable- Vermont Municipal Bond

Bank, Pool, Interest at 5.35%, $105,000 

plus interest due May and November 15

Due in full November 2019. 105,000         -                    (105,000)       -                

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 2,357,326$    60,000$        (330,135)$     2,087,191$   

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2021 165,135$      69,249$        234,384$      

2022 165,135        65,015          230,150        

2023 135,135        60,415          195,550        

2024 135,135        56,344          191,479        

2025 135,135        52,070          187,205        

2026-2030 675,675        191,374        867,049        
2031-2035 675,841        66,333          742,174        

         TOTAL 2,087,191$   560,800$      2,647,991$   

Governmental Activities

 
 

Beginning Principal Ending
Business-Type Funds Balance Additions Reduction Balance

Note Payable- State of Vermont Special 

Environmental Revolving Fund, Sanitation

and Wastewater Improvements, Authorized to

$566,938 but was Eligible for 50% Forgiveness,

Interest at 0% an Administration fee of 2% is 

Assessed Annually, Annual Payments of 

$17,336, Due October 2030. 183,334$       -$              (13,669)$       169,665$      

Note Payable- State of Vermont Special 

Environmental Revolving Fund, Wastewater

Improvements, Authorized to $13,525,000

but Eligible for $600,000 Subsidy. Interest at 0%,

Administration Fee of 2% is Assessed Annually;

Payments of $790,451, Due February 2036. 11,297,018    -                    (564,510)       10,732,508    
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

25 



 

 

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 

NOTE 11 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (continued) 
 

Beginning Principal Ending
Business-Type Funds Balance Additions Reduction Balance

Note Payable- State of Vermont Special 

Environmental Revolving Fund, Sanitation Pump

Station Improvements, Authorized $1,212,300

but Eligible for $114,800 Subsidy Leaving a 

Total Repayment Amount of $1,097,500, 
Interest at 0%, an Administration fee of 2% is

Assessed Annually, Payments of $67,120 

Due November 2035. 862,436         -                    (49,871)         812,565        

Bond Payable- Vermont Municipal Bond Bank,

Water Improvements, Net Interest Cost of 

3.403%, $30,031 due Annually on December 1, 

Semi-Annual Interest Payments Due June and

December 1, Due December 2035. 477,374         -                    (29,565)         447,809        

Bond Payable- Vermont Municipal Bond Bank Series

2010-5 New Money (Recovery Zone Economic 

Development Bond) Wastewater Improvements,

Annual Principal Payments Ranging from

$55,000 to $60,000 Due December 1, 

Semi-Annual Interest Payments Due June 1 

and December 1, Net Interest Cost of 3.345%

30 Year Bond Assumed from the Town of 

Bradford Due December 2040 1,225,000      -                    (60,000)         1,165,000     

14,045,162$  -$                  (717,615)$     13,327,547$ 

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2021 730,476$      288,384$      1,018,860$   

2022 743,289        273,072        1,016,361     

2023 751,357        257,394        1,008,751     

2024 764,687        241,466        1,006,153     

2025 778,283        225,188        1,003,471     

2026-2030 4,105,074     865,807        4,970,881     

2031-2035 4,349,596     411,487        4,761,083     

2036-2040 1,049,785     50,406          1,100,191     
2041 55,000          998               55,998          

13,327,547$ 2,614,202$   15,941,749$  
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Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 12 CAPITAL LEASE 
 

The Village has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of a bus and a 
van valued at $51,753 and $57,908, respectively. The vehicles have a useful life of seven years. At 
June 30, 2020, $15,667 was included in depreciation expense. This lease qualifies as a capital 
lease for accounting purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value of its future 
minimum lease payments as of the inception date.  

 
The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments 
as of June 30, 2020 were as follows: 

 

Year Ending Future Minimum Net Present
June 30, Payments Value Interest

2021 12,238$            11,901$      337$           

Total minimum lease payments 12,238$            11,901$      337$            
 
  The total interest paid for the year ended June 30, 2020 was $516 in the business-type funds. 
 
 
NOTE 13 NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES 
 

GASB Statement No. 34, as amended by GASB Statement No. 54, requires fund balances 
reported on the governmental fund balance sheet to be classified using a hierarchy based 
primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to honor constraints on the specific 
purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. 
 
Governmental fund balances are to be classified as: nonspendable (not in spendable form or 
legally required to remain intact); restricted (constraints on the use of resources are either 
externally imposed by creditors, grantors or donors, or imposed by law through enabling 
legislation); committed (constraints on the use of resources are imposed by formal action of the 
voters); assigned (reflecting the Board of Trustee's intended use of the resources); and 
unassigned. 

 
Special revenue funds are created only to report a revenue source (or sources) that is restricted or 
committed to a specified purpose, and that the revenue source should constitute a substantial 
portion of the resources reported in that fund. Special revenue funds cannot be used to 
accumulate funds that are not restricted or committed. These amounts will have to be reflected in 
the General Fund. 

 
Amounts constrained to stabilization will be reported as restricted or committed fund balance in the 
General Fund if they meet the other criteria for those classifications. However, stabilization is 
regarded as a specified purpose only if the circumstances or conditions that signal the need for 
stabilization (a) are identified in sufficient detail and (b) are not expected to occur routinely. 
Governments are required to disclose key information about their stabilization arrangements, 
including the authority by which they were established, provisions for additions to the 
stabilization amount, and circumstances under which those amounts may be spent. The Village 
does not have any stabilization arrangements. 
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Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 

 
NOTE 13 NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES (continued) 

 
Some governments create stabilization-like arrangements by establishing formal minimum fund 
balance policies. Because users are interested in information about those minimum fund balance 
policies and how governments comply with them, governments are required to explain their 
minimum fund balance policies, if they have them, in notes to the financial statements. The 
Village does not have a minimum fund balance policy. The Village does have a maximum fund 
balance policy which is to maintain an unassigned fund balance which is no greater than ten 
percent (10%) of the prior year's budget. 

 
When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted amounts are 
available, it is the Village's policy to first consider restricted amounts to have been spent, followed 
by committed, assigned, and finally unassigned amounts. 

 
The purpose for each major special revenue fund - including which specific revenues and other 
resources are authorized to be reported in each are described in the following section. 

 
 Fund Balance and Net Position classifications at June 30, 2020 are as follows: 
 

GENERAL FUND

Nonspendable for:

Inventories 106,200$      
Prepaid Expenses 43,928          

Total Nonspendable Fund Balance 150,128$      

Assigned for:

Library Book Replacement 6,384$          

Termination Benefits 66,809

Health Reimbursement Arrangement Expenses 10,000          

Governance 21,667          

Building Maintenance 62,774          
Paving Underspent 68,303          

Total Assigned Fund Balance 235,937$      

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

Committed for:
Capital Reserve Fund Expenditures 788,307$      

ROLLING STOCK RESERVE FUND

Committed for:
Rolling Stock Reserve Fund Expenditures 295,683$       
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Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 13 NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES (continued) 

 

NON MAJOR FUNDS

Restricted for:

Veterans Memorial Park by Donation 3,655$          
Senior Center 21,260          

Total Restricted Fund Balance 24,915$        

Committed for:

Land Acquisition Capital Reserve Fund Expenditures 82,249$        
EJRP Capital Reserve 57,767          

Total Committed Fund Balance 140,016$      

Assigned for:

Economic Development 353,578$      
Building Maintenance 101,631        

Total Assigned Fund Balance 455,209$      

WATER, SANITATION, WASTEWATER AND RECREATION PROGRAMS FUNDS

Designated for:
Water Fund Expenses 329,885$      

Water Fund Capital Expenses 211,575        

Total Water Designated Fund Balance 541,460$      

Sanitation Fund Expenses 383,388$      

Sanitation Fund Capital Expenses 624,405        
Sanitation Wastewater Treatment Facility Upgrades 852,143        

Total Sanitation Designated Fund Balance 1,859,936$    
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Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 13 NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES (continued) 
 

Wastewater Fund Capital Expenses 1,307,583$   

Wastewater Expenses- Attributable to the Village of Essex Juncti 300,041        

Wastewater Expenses- Attributable to the Town of Essex 141,801        

Wastewater Expenses- Attributable to the Town of Williston 174,155        
Wastewater Fund Expenses- General 108,985        

Total Wastewater Designated Fund Balance 2,032,565$   

Recreation Programs Fund - General (205,727)$      
 
 
NOTE 14  BENEFIT PLANS 
 

The Village offers a 401(a) pension plan to all full time employees with 100% vesting after three (3) 
years of service. When a participant in a 401(a) plan has been separated from service for a period of 
at least three years or withdraws his or her entire account balance, whichever is earlier, any 
non-vested employer contributions are forfeited by the participant and transferred to the plan-level 
forfeiture account. This plan qualifies, according to the Internal Revenue Service, as a defined 
contribution pension plan for governmental organizations exempt from income taxes. The plan 
requires a 5% contribution of base pay from the employee with a 10% match of base pay by the 
Village for all employees. The International City/County Management Association "ICMA" 
Retirement Corporation administers the Plan. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely 
on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings. All of the investments are self-directed 
by each employee. The total payroll for the year was $3,268,695 while the covered payroll was 
$2,334,784. Pension expenses for the years ended June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018 were $232,480, 
$224,686 and $211,234 respectively. Forfeiture funds in the amount of $17,466 were used in 
FY20. 

 
The Village also offers its employees a deferred compensation plan through the International 
City/County Management Association "ICMA" Retirement Corporation in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457. The plan permits employees to defer a portion of their salary until 
future years. Deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, 
death, or unforeseeable emergency. The Village has no liability for losses under the plan but does 
have the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. All of the 
investments are self-directed by each employee. The balance of the assets in the plan, at fair 
market value, as of June 30, 2020 was $604,955. 

 
The Village also offers its employees a Cafeteria Plan in accordance with Internal Revenue Code 
Section 125. This allows employees to pay for health benefits and dependent care pre-tax and 
pre-social security. 

 
All full-time Village employees receive a group life insurance policy for two and a half their annual 
salary up to a maximum of $100,000. 
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Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 15 CONCENTRATION OF REVENUE/EXPENSES 
 

The Village receives a major portion of its revenue from GlobalFoundries. For the year ended 
June 30, 2020, the Village received 7.19% of total property taxes from GlobalFoundries and 
received 71.82% of total water sales from GlobalFoundries. 
 
The Village purchased a major portion of their water from Champlain Water District "CWD" for the 
year ended June 30, 2020. The Village purchased $3,217,971 in water from CWD. 
 
 

NOTE 16  PROPERTY TAXES 
 

The Town of Essex is responsible for assessing and collecting Village property taxes, as well as 
education property taxes for the State. Property taxes are assessed based on property valuations as 
of April 1, the approved budgets and the State education property tax liability. The Town remits 
100% of the taxes billed to the Village in two (2) installments in October and April. Any 
delinquencies are absorbed by the Town. The Village tax rates for fiscal year 2020 included 
Village General Fund $0.3206 and Village Economic Development $0.0100. 

 
 
NOTE 17 RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The Village of Essex Junction is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, 
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions: injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The 
Village of Essex Junction maintains insurance coverage through the Vermont League of Cities 
and Towns Property and Casualty Intermunicipal Fund, Inc. covering each of those risks of loss. 
Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the 
Village of Essex Junction. Settled claims have not exceeded this coverage in any of the past three 
fiscal years. The Village must remain a member for a minimum of one year and may withdraw from 
the Fund after that time by giving sixty days’ notice. Fund underwriting and ratesetting policies have 
been established after consultation with actuaries. Fund members are subject to a supplemental 
assessment in the event of deficiencies. If the assets of the Fund were to be exhausted, members 
would be responsible for the Fund's liabilities. 

 
The Village of Essex Junction is also a member of the Vermont League of Cities and Towns 
Unemployment Insurance Trust. The Unemployment Trust is a nonprofit corporation formed to 
provide unemployment coverage for Vermont municipalities and is owned by the participating 
members. The agreement does not permit the Unemployment Trust to make additional 
assessments to its members. 

  
 
NOTE 18  CONTINGENT LIABLITIES 
 

The Village is a participating member in the Chittenden Solid Waste District (CSWD) and 
Champlain Water District (CWD). The Village could be subject to a portion of the two district's debt if 
the districts experience financial problems. 
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Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 

  
NOTE 19 OTHER INFORMATION 
 

The Village finished refurbishing its Wastewater Treatment Facility. The Village owns the facility, 
however, the facility serves three municipalities; the Village of Essex Junction, the Town of 
Essex and the Town of Williston. The Village has an agreement with the Towns to provide capacity 
and treatment rights in exchange for an annual fee and for their share of the improvements. The cost 
of the project was $15,230,000 paid for with borrowed funds from the State of Vermont Special 
Environmental Revolving Fund, a general obligation bond and from capital reserves. The debt 
service cost is shared amongst all three municipalities based upon the capacity owned by each. At 
the end of fiscal year 2020, the Village owns 34.2%, the Town of Essex owns 33.33% and the Town 
of Williston owns 32.4%. The Village has an agreement with the Town of Williston to sell them an 
additional 10,000 gallons per day of capacity for $100,000 per year for four more years which will 
increase the Town of Williston's capacity. The Town of Williston has already paid $600,000 for 
60,000 gallons over the past six years. The sale of this capacity will change the debt service 
percentages as noted previously. After the fiscal year end 2021 final sale, the Village's percentage 
will be 33.94% and the Town of Williston's will be 32.73%.   

  
 
NOTE 20 AUTHORIZED BORROWING 
 

In June, 2011, the Village voters authorized the borrowing of up to $3,200,000 contingent upon other 
Federal and State aid for the purpose of making public improvements to the Village highways 
and sidewalks. The total estimated cost of such improvements is $11,531,000. No action has 
taken place as of June 30, 2020. 
 

 
NOTE 21 RELATED PARTY  
 
 In July 2014 the Village entered into an agreement with the Town of Essex to bill and collect 

property taxes.  Under the terms of the agreements, the Town purchased the outstanding 
delinquent taxes, penalty and interest receivables as of July 1, 2014, and assumes liability for 
the collection of those balances due and future taxes. All penalties and interest that accrues on 
delinquent balances shall belong to the Town. Effective July 2015, the accounting departments 
of the Village and the Town of Essex merged and operate under one accounting system and 
maintain one operating cash account; the operating account balance is reported entirely on the 
financial statements of the Town of Essex. At June 30, 2020 $6,504,535 of the balance in the 
operating account belonged to the Village, this is reported as Due from Town of Essex in the 
accompanying financial statements.  

 
 
NOTE 22 TAX ABATEMENT 
 
 The Village has three tax stabilization agreement that qualify as tax abatements per GASB 

Statement no. 77 Tax Abatement Disclosures. The Village, under the authority of the Board of 
Trustees, has agreed to exclude the value of two structures on a parcel of farm land in 
exchange for the land to continue to be open to residents for non-motorized recreational 
purposes. In FY2020 the amount of taxes abated totaled $1,782.  
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Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 22 TAX ABATEMENT (continued) 
 
 The Village has two active agreements both beginning in FY2020 under the authority of the 

Village of Essex Junction Commercial Tax Stabilization Policy. One is a standard commercial 
tax stabilization where the Village has agreed to abate 70% of the municipal taxes for the first 
year of the agreement.  The percentage of abated taxed decreases to 50% in year 2, and 30% 
in year 3. For FY2020 $10,810 was abated. The second falls under the historic building 
stabilization schedule where the Village has agreed to abate 70% of the municipal taxes for the 
first year of the agreement. The percentage of abated taxes decreases by 10% annually until 
year 6 when the property is fully taxable. For FY2020 $553 was abated.  

 
 These agreements apply to Village taxes only and have no impact on Town of Essex property 

taxes or Educational property taxes.   
 
 
NOTE 23 EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 
 

 Expenditures exceeded appropriations in the General Fund by $14,368. This was due 
 primarily to overspending in public safety. These amounts  were offset by fund balance 
 assignments for related purposes and a decrease in unassigned  fund balance.  
 
 

NOTE 24 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 
 
 Fund balance in the general fund have been adjusted $12,155 at the beginning of fiscal year 

2020 to correct an overstatement of revenue at June 30, 2019.  
 
 Net position in the recreation and governmental activities fund has been adjusted $353,419 

and $12,155, respectively, at the beginning of fiscal year 2020 to correct an overstatement of 
revenue at June 30, 2019. In previous years revenue was being recognized in the year it was 
received for summer camps that were held in the next fiscal year. Due to the reduction in such 
revenues in 2020 resulting from COVID-19, the change in receipts was material to the financial 
statements.  

 
 
NOTE 25 DISCLOSURE OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
  
 On July 24, 2020 the Village acquired a note payable with People’s United Bank in the amount 

of $60,000 with an interest rate of 1.85%, due July 23, 2021.  
  
 In accordance with professional accounting standards, the Village has evaluated subsequent 

events through December 29, 2020, which is the date the financial statements were available 
to be issued. All subsequent events requiring recognition as of June 30, 2020, have been 
incorporated into the financial statements herein. 
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Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 
NOTE 25 DISCLOSURE OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued) 
 

The Village evaluated its June 30, 2020 financial statements though December 29, 2020, the 
date the financial statements were available to be issued. As a result of the spread of the 
COVID-19 Coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen which are likely to negatively 
impact net income. Other financial impact could occur though such potential impact and the 
duration cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. In March 2020, the Governor of Vermont 
declared a state of emergency and issued an order to close all nonessential businesses. The 
closure lasted for months and has still not completely resumed. Some businesses continue to 
be impacted due to restrictions in operations and the requirement for at least partial student 
remote learning. Due to the uncertainty of the effect of the virus and whether there could be a 
resurgence, possible effects may include, but are not limited to, disruption to the Village’s cash 
flow and receivable collections, absenteeism in the Village’s labor workforce, unavailability of 
products and supplies used in operations, and decline in value of assets held by the Village 
including inventories, property and equipment and marketable securities. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 

 
 
 

 
  



Original
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES

Property tax 3,556,422$ 3,556,422$ 3,556,878$ 456$           
Licenses and permits 35,000        35,000        40,795        5,795          
Intergovernmental revenues 1,251,876   1,251,876   1,295,424   43,548        
Charges for services 304,395      304,395      305,190      795             
Fines and forfeits 1,000          1,000          2,703          1,703          
Interest income 2,500          2,500          5,073          2,573          
Donations 500             500             152,761      152,261      
Other income 13,220        13,220        31,273        18,053        

Total Revenues 5,164,913   5,164,913   5,390,097   225,184      

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General government 871,192      871,192      873,732      (2,540)         

 Public safety 351,860      351,860      485,388      (133,528)     
 Public works 1,182,376   1,182,376   1,137,168   45,208        

Community development 295,644      295,644      236,417      59,227        
Culture and recreation 1,389,551   1,389,551   1,372,285   17,266        

Debt Service:
Principal 240,135      240,135      240,135      -                  
Interest expense 73,425        73,425        73,426        (1)                

 
Total Expenditures 4,404,183   4,404,183   4,418,551   (14,368)       

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 760,730      760,730      971,546      210,816      

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out (760,730)     (760,730)     (760,654)     76               

Net Change in Fund Balance -$                -$                210,892$    210,892$    

 For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGETARY BASIS - GENERAL FUND

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Veteran Land Acquisition EJRP
Memorial Senior Center Capital Reserve  Economic Capital Reserve Building 
Park Fund Fund Fund Development Fund Maintenance Total

ASSETS

Cash -$               100$             -$                       -$                   -$                     -$                  100$               
Due from other funds 3,655         21,435          82,249                353,578          57,767              101,631        620,315          

Total Assets 3,655$       21,535$        82,249$              353,578$        57,767$            101,631$      620,415$        

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable -$               275$             -$                       -$               -$                     -$                  275$               

Total Liabilities -                 275               -                         -                     -                       -                    275                 

FUND BALANCE  

Restricted 3,655         21,260          -                         -                     -                       -                    24,915            
Committed -                 -                    82,249                -                     57,767              -                    140,016          
Assigned -                 -                    -                         353,578          -                       101,631        455,209          

Total Fund Balances 3,655         21,260          82,249                353,578          57,767              101,631        620,140          

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances 3,655$       21,535$        82,249$              353,578$        57,767$            101,631$      620,415$        
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Village of Essex Junction, Vermont

June 30, 2020
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Special Revenue
Fund Fund

Capital Project 



 

Veteran Land Acquisition EJRP

Memorial Senior Center Capital Reserve  Economic Capital Reserve Building 
Park Fund Fund Fund Development Fund Maintenance Total

REVENUES

Charges for Service -$                      5,354$               -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      5,354$               

Property Tax -                        -                        -                        110,944             -                        -                        110,944             

Miscellaneous Income -                        1,771                 -                        -                        5,000                 -                        6,771                 
Interest 24                      153                    533                    2,331                 47                      482                    3,570                 

Total Revenue 24                      7,278                 533                    113,275             5,047                 482                    126,639             

EXPENDITURES

Program Expense -                        11,356               -                        83,721               9,680                 1,487                 106,244             
Capital Outlay -                        -                        -                        -                        77,595               -                        77,595               

Total Expenditures -                        11,356               -                        83,721               87,275               1,487                 183,839             

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures 24                      (4,078)               533                    29,554               (82,228)             (1,005)               (57,200)             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfer -                        -                        -                        -                        138,616             50,000               188,616             

Net Change in Fund Balance 24                      (4,078)               533                    29,554               56,388               48,995               131,416             

Fund Balance - July 1, 2019 3,631                 25,338               81,716               324,024             1,379                 52,636               488,724             

Fund Balance - June 30, 2020 3,655$               21,260$             82,249$             353,578$           57,767$             101,631$           620,140$           

 For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue
Fund Fund

Capital Project 

37



Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

OPERATING REVENUES

 Water Sales - Village 1,086,788$     1,125,059$     38,271$          
Water Sales - GF  2,767,430       2,715,753       (51,677)           
Water Sales - GF Vermont Tax 70,117            60,821            (9,296)             
Water Sales - Large Users 92,729            91,377            (1,352)             
Penalties 4,500              6,236              1,736              
Hook on Fees 15,000            6,550              (8,450)             
Interest Earnings -                      679                 679                 
Miscellaneous -                      918                 918                 

Total Operating Revenues 4,036,564       4,007,393       (29,171)           

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries - Regular 118,220          117,551          669                 
Salaries - Overtime 14,000            14,365            (365)                
Salaries - Part time 9,193              3,329              5,864              
Social security 10,699            10,220            479                 
Unemployment insurance 60                   102                 (42)                  
Workers compensation insurance 7,992              6,679              1,313              
Health insurance and other benefits 65,713            66,102            (389)                
Retirement 11,822            11,406            416                 
Liability and property insurance 2,620              1,783              837                 
Supplies 7,000              4,099              2,901              
Telephone 1,500              2,167              (667)                
Postage 2,600              2,893              (293)                
Gas, oil and grease 3,000              1,189              1,811              
Meters and parts 500                 -                      500                 
Distribution materials 7,500              1,471              6,029              
Computer expenses 1,000              1,374              (374)                
Water and sewer charges 200                 82                   118                 
Training and conferences 2,500              727                 1,773              
Electrical services 1,000              862                 138                 
Heat 3,000              2,194              806                 
Maintenance - Other 2,500              8,674              (6,174)             
Vehicle maintenance -                      19                   (19)                  
Water line maintenance - breaks 16,000            23,948            (7,948)             
Uniforms and boots 1,500              740                 760                 

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES 

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
WATER FUND

 For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
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Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES 

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
WATER FUND

 For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

OPERATING EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

Contracted services 118,559          118,559          -                      
Other professional services 1,000              275                 725                 
Audit services 3,738              4,543              (805)                
Right of way agreements 142                 100                 42                   
Water purchases - Village 504,006          504,141          (135)                
Water purchases - GF 2,767,430       2,713,830       53,600            
Printing and advertising 2,000              1,278              722                 
Accident claims -                      5,611              (5,611)             
Transfer to capital reserve 260,000          260,000          -                      
Capital outlay 6,000 2,230              3,770              
Interest expense 300 -                      300                 
State water tax - Village 13,153            11,298            1,855              
State water tax - GF 70,117            60,821            9,296              

Total Operating Expenses 4,036,564       3,964,662       71,902            

Operating Income -$                    42,731$          42,731$          

RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY 
BASIS TO GAAP BASIS
Change in Net Position - Budgetary Basis 42,731$          

Adjustments for non-budget:
Bond Interest (15,523)           
Capital Contributions 260,000          
Interest Earned on Capital Reserve Fund 436                 
Depreciation (118,498)         

Change in Net Position - Budgetary Basis 169,146$        
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Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

OPERATING REVENUES

 Sanitation billing 636,064$        649,135$        13,071$          
Sanitation penalty 2,500              3,330              830                 
Essex pump station fees 28,750            27,517            (1,233)             
Two party agreement revenue 15,000            15,000            -                      
Hook on fees 30,000            84,000            54,000            
Interest earnings 1,000              6,981              5,981              
Miscellaneous 6,240              9,470 3,230              

Total Operating Revenues 719,554          795,433          75,879            

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries - Regular 101,835          105,921          (4,086)             
Salaries - Overtime 14,000            9,966              4,034              
Salaries - Part time 9,232              4,025              5,207              
Social security 9,568              9,087              481                 
Unemployment insurance 70                   108                 (38)                  
Workers compensation insurance 6,967              5,542              1,425              
Health insurance and other benefits 53,162            47,382            5,780              
Retirement 10,183            10,052            131                 
Liability and property insurance 4,469              11,640            (7,171)             
Supplies 1,000              2,355              (1,355)             
Postage 5,000              5,786              (786)                
Gas, oil and grease 3,500              3,385              115                 
Computer expenses 1,000              2,758              (1,758)             
Water and sewer charges 500                 235                 265                 
Training and conferences 200                 -                      200                 
Electrical services 14,000            11,169            2,831              
Heating/natural gas 1,800              959                 841                 
Maintenance - Other 2,500              910                 1,590              
Vehicle maintenance -                      233                 (233)                
Pump station maintenance 14,000            4,616              9,384              
Sanitation line maintenance 6,000              1,400              4,600              
Meter Replacement Program -                      4,100              (4,100)             
Susie Wilson pump station costs 12,000            8,344              3,656              
West St. pump station costs 13,000            12,308            692                 

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES 

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
SANITATION FUND

 For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
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Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES 

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
SANITATION FUND

 For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

OPERATING EXPENSES (continued)

Uniforms and boots 1,500              1,803              (303)                
Contracted services 150,559          150,559          -                      
Right-Of-Way Agreements 1,640              548                 1,092              
Sanitation line back-up cleaning 1,000              1,575              (575)                

Other professional services 1,000              420                 580                 
Audit services 1,869              2,372              (503)                
Printing and advertising 1,500              -                      1,500              
Capital reserve fund contributions 95,000            95,000            -                      
Capital outlay 5,000              -                  5,000              

Total Operating Expenses 543,054          514,558          28,496            

Operating Income 176,500$        280,875          104,375$        

RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY 
BASIS TO GAAP BASIS

Change in Net Position - Budgetary Basis 280,875$        
Adjustments for non-budget:

Admin Fee on ARRA Loan (3,147)             
RF1-157 Loan Admin Fee (17,249)           
Sale of WWTF Capacity 100,000          
Interest Earned on Capital Reserve Fund 3,512              
Capital Reserve Fund Transfer 95,000            
Transfers from WWTF Fund for Debt 52,808            
Transfer to WWTF for Upgrade (305,879)         
Depreciation (161,500)         

Change in Net Position - Budgetary Basis 44,420$          
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Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

OPERATING REVENUES

 Village user charges 773,856$        807,887$        34,031$          
Village user penalties 3,500              4,093              593                 
Wastewater charge - Essex 488,219          488,219          -                      
Wastewater charge - Williston 752,671          752,671          -                      
Pump station maintenance fee 32,000            32,000            -                      
Village septage discharge income 16,000            33,308            17,308            
Shared septage revenue 8,000              16,406            8,406              
Village leachate revenues -                      875                 875                 
Share leachate revenues -                      431                 431                 
Efficiency Vermont revenues -                      6,904              6,904              
Interest Earnings -                      3,591              3,591              
Miscellaneous -                      63,645            63,645            

Total Operating Revenues 2,074,246       2,210,030       135,784          

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries - Regular 339,164          342,352          (3,188)             
Salaries - Overtime 48,000            44,678            3,322              
Salaries - Part-time 15,394            8,567              6,827              
Social security 33,916            29,254            4,662              
Workers comp insurance 29,669            18,778            10,891            
Unemployment insurance 150                 436                 (286)                

Health insurance other benefits 134,490          110,888          23,602            
Retirement 33,916            33,718            198                 
Liability and property insurance 27,979            27,830            149                 
Supplies 8,500              5,475              3,025              
Supplies - Laboratory 19,000            16,933            2,067              
Chemicals 300,000          320,275          (20,275)           
Gas, grease and oil 6,000              4,193              1,807              
Water and sewer charge 3,000              6,279              (3,279)             
Training and conference 7,000              5,769              1,231              
Telephone services 6,000              5,820              180                 
Electrical service 140,000          162,627          (22,627)           
Heating 25,000            22,468            2,532              
Maintenance - other 120,000          97,984            22,016            
Rental of Equipment -                      1,469              (1,469)             
Vehicles maintenance - travel 4,000              891                 3,109              

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES 

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
WASTEWATER FUND

 For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
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Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES 

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
WASTEWATER FUND

 For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

OPERATING EXPENSES (continued)

Uniforms, boots, etc. 5,500              5,513              (13)                  
Contract laboratory services 12,000            11,400            600                 
Contract services 59,280            59,280            -                      
Legal services 4,000              3,990              10                   
Grit Disposal 14,000            13,793            207                 
Sludge dewatering 150,000          167,400          (17,400)           
Sludge management 150,000          77,555            72,445            
Other professional services 4,000              18,149            (14,149)           
Audit 4,388              5,335              (947)                
WWTF Annual permit fee 9,900              9,900              -                      
Capital reserve fund contributions 360,000          360,000          -                      

Total Operating Expenses 2,074,246       1,998,999       75,247            

Operating Income -$                    211,031          211,031$        

RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY 
BASIS TO GAAP BASIS

Change in Net Position - Budgetary Basis 211,031$        
Adjustments for non-budget:

Bond Interest (42,698)           
Admin Fee on ARRA Loan (520)                
Capital Reserve Fund Transfer 360,000          
Town of Essex Bond Contribution 297,758          
Town of Williston Bond Contribution 289,646          
Essex Junction Debt Payment 305,879          
Interest Earned on Capital Reserve Fund 6,084              
Capital Outlay (231,050)         
Transfer to Sanitation Fund (52,808)           
Depreciation (943,401)         

Change in Net Position - Budgetary Basis 199,921$        
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Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

OPERATING REVENUES

 Pool day admission 68,136$          70,434$          2,298$            
Pool memberships 38,897 14,028 (24,869)           
Swim lessons 50,018 53,297 3,279              
Concession sales 2,500 -                  (2,500)             
Facility and field rental 10,712 11,500 788                 
Youth program- RP 132,210 129,547          (2,663)             
Youth program- Aquatics 161,029          3,660              (157,369)         
Youth program- AS 37,270 20,333            (16,937)           
Adult programs 51,236 86,010            34,774            
Childcare - AS 627,381 625,673          (1,708)             
Childcare- PS 365,604 341,422          (24,182)           
Childcare- DC 317,555 403,815          86,260            
Shared staffing contract 41,646 50,046            8,400              
Interest earnings -                      (169)                (169)                
Sponsorship 8,500              2,025              (6,475)             

Total Operating Revenues 1,912,694       1,811,621       (101,073)         

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration

Salaries - Part-time 3,310              54                   3,256              
Social security 253                 1,282              (1,029)             
Workers compensation insurance 29,736            27,776            1,960              

Other professional services 5,000              32,881            (27,881)           
Equipment rentals 2,500              4,327              (1,827)             
Training, conferences, dues 8,500              8,901              (401)                
Communications -                  604                 (604)                
Telephone services -                  548                 (548)                
Postage 6,816              3,144              3,672              
Printing and advertising 22,123            7,832              14,291            
Credit card processing fees -                  32,389            (32,389)           

Recreation Programs
Salaries - Regular 25,793            26,192            (399)                
Salaries- Part-time 24,640            7,153              17,487            
Social security 3,910              1,863              2,047              
Other professional services 112,294          136,911          (24,617)           

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES 

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
ESSEX JUNCTION RECREATION AND PARKS

 For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
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Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES 

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
ESSEX JUNCTION RECREATION AND PARKS

 For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Water and sewer charges 800                 -                  800                 
Maintenance- buildings/grounds 250                 -                      250                 
Rental 600                 1,350              (750)                
Equipment rentals 800                 -                      800                 
Training, conferences, dues 600                 -                      600                 
Printing and advertising 450                 90                   360                 
Supplies 23,276            46,243            (22,967)           

After School Care
Salaries - Regular 252,138          265,631          (13,493)           
Salaries- Part-time 171,264          147,761          23,503            
Shared employee expense -                  11,512            (11,512)           
Health insurance and other benefits 85,297            54,465            30,832            
Social security 32,390            30,851            1,539              
Retirement 30,652            28,374            2,278              
Other professional services 24,513            22,165            2,348              
Truck lease 24,145            517                 23,628            
Training, conferences, dues 18,760            4,181              14,579            
Telephone 3,300              2,727              573                 
Travel 33,066            20,525            12,541            
Supplies 27,771            23,256            4,515              
Gas, grease, oil 1,900              1,523              377                 

Preschool
Salaries- Regular -                      188,275          (188,275)         
Salaries- Part-time 193,218          22,604            170,614          
Health insurance and other benefits 23,139            71,355            (48,216)           
Social security 83,864            15,807            68,057            
Retirement 16,551            18,334            (1,783)             
Health improvement programs 18,142            -                  18,142            
Other professional services -                  2,870              (2,870)             
Rental 3,072              -                      3,072              
Training, conferences, dues -                  7,864              (7,864)             
Communications 8,744              541                 8,203              
Travel 1,728              246                 1,482              
Supplies 4,500              5,108              (608)                

Summer Day Camps
Salaries- Regular 37,017            20,384            16,633            
Salaries- Part-time 172,852          217,822          (44,970)           

OPERATING EXPENSES (continued)
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Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES 

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
ESSEX JUNCTION RECREATION AND PARKS

 For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Social security 16,055            18,128            (2,073)             
Other professional services 5,916              11,016            (5,100)             
Travel 34,398            32,981            1,417              
Supplies 14,176            27,568            (13,392)           
Gas, grease and oil 100                 -                  100                 

Pool
Salaries- Part-time 88,040            86,687            1,353              
Social security 6,735              6,632              103                 
Other professional services 8,398              14,324            (5,926)             
Water and sewer charges 2,037              -                  2,037              
Maintenance- buildings/grounds 21,246            22,518            (1,272)             
Supplies 5,749              6,224              (475)                

Aquatics
Salaries- Part-time 3,600              -                  3,600              
Social security 275                 -                  275                 
Other professional services 145,882          -                  145,882          

Parks & Facilities
Salaries- Part-time 7,225              8,969              (1,744)             
Social security 553                 686                 (133)                
Other professional services 2,500              1,265              1,235              
Equipment rental 4,800              4,209              591                 
Training, conferences, dues 3,500              2,995              505                 
Parks and facilities supplies 1,175              5,549              (4,374)             

Total Operating Expenses 1,912,034       1,773,989       138,045          

Operating Income 660$               37,632$          36,972$          

RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY 
BASIS TO GAAP BASIS

Change in Net Position - Budgetary Basis 37,632$          
Adjustments for non-budget:

Reserve Transfer (27,000)           
Depreciation (16,250)           

Change in Net Position - Budgetary Basis (5,618)$           

OPERATING EXPENSES (continued)
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Report 1

Pass Federal

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Through CFDA Federal 

Grantor/Program Title Grantor Number Number Expenditures

U. S. Department of Transportation

Passed through State of Vermont, Agency of 

Transportation

Highway Planning and Construction - Crescent Connector CA0315 20.205 955,529$       

Highway Planning and Construction - Pearl Street Linking CA0397 20.205 10,823           

Highway Planning and Construction - Brickyard Mansfield Gravel Wetland Project CA0462 20.205 268                
Highway Planning and Construction - Phosphorus Control Plan CA0530 20.205 3,625             

970,245         

U.S Department of Homeland Security

FEMA 97.044 139,959         

National Endowment for the Humanities

Passed through State of Vermont, Department of Libraries
Grants to States - Courier Courier 45.310 390                

U.S. Department of Treasury

Passed through State of Vermont, Department of Taxes 01140CRF20LGE0027 21.019 106,090         

Total Expenditure of Federal Awards 1,216,684$    

NOTE A BASIS OF PRESENTATION

NOTE B SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 (2) The Village of Essex Junction, Vermont has not elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under 
the Uniform Guidance because no indirect costs were allowed under the federal awards.

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS

 For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal award activity of the Village of Essex Junction, 
Vermont under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2020. The information in this Schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents 
only a selected portion of the operations of the Village , it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in 
net assets, or cash flows of the Village of Essex Junction, Vermont.

(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized 
following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are 
limited as to reimbursement.



l<BS 
Kittell Branagan & Sargent 
Certified Public Accoiintants 

Vermont License # 167 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 

MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Trustees 
Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
Essex Junction, VT 

Report 2 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of 
Essex Junction, Vermont, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the Village of Essex Junction, Vermont's basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated December 29, 2020. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Village of Essex Junction, 
Vermont's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village of Essex Junction, Vermont's 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village of Essex 
Junction, Vermont's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified. 
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To the Board of Trustees Report 2 (cont'd) 
Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Village of Essex Junction, Vermont's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such 
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required 
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or 
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

St. Albans, Vermont 
December 29, 2020 



l<BS 
Kittell Branagan & Sargent 
Certified Public Accountants 

Vermont License # 167 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Board of Trustees 
Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 
Essex Junction, VT 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Report 3 

We have audited the Village of Essex Junction, Vermont's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on 
each of the Village of Essex Junction, Vermont's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. 
Village of Essex Junction, Vermont's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of 
its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Village of Essex Junction, Vermont's 
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Village of Essex 
Junction, Vermont's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Village of Essex Junction, 
Vermont's compliance. 
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To the Board of Trustees Report 3 (cont'd) 
Village of Essex Junction, Vermont 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the Village of Essex Junction, Vermont, complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the Village of Essex Junction, Vermont, is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Village of Essex Junction, Vermont's 
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on 
each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report 
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village of Essex Junction, Vermont's internal control over 
compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over 
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may 
exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

St. Albans, Vermont 
December 29, 2020 



 

 

Village of Essex Junction, Vermont                       Report 4 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

June 30, 2020 
 
 
 
A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 
 

1. The auditor’s report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Village of Essex 
Junction, Vermont 

 
2. There were no significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the financial statements.  No 

material weaknesses are reported. 
 
3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Village of Essex Junction, 

Vermont, which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards, were disclosed during the audit. 

 
4. There were no significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the major federal award 

programs.  No material weaknesses are reported. 
 
5. The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award programs Village of Essex Junction, 

Vermont expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs. 
 
6. There were no audit findings relative to the major federal award programs for Village of Essex 

Junction, Vermont 
 

7. The programs tested as major programs were: 
 
  20.205 Highway Planning and Construction – Crescent Connector 
  20.205 Highway Planning and Construction – Pearl Street Linking 
  20.205 Highway Planning and Construction – Mansfield Stormwater 
  20.205 Highway Planning and Construction – Phosphorus Control  
   
 The threshold for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $750,000. 

 
8. Village of Essex Junction, Vermont was not determined to be a high-risk auditee. 

 
 
B. FINDINGS – FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT 
 

- There were no findings related to the financial statements audit. 
 
 
C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS – MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT 
 

- There were no findings or questioned costs related to the major federal award programs. 
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Memorandum  
 
To:  Village Trustees; Evan Teich, Unified Manager 
From:  Sarah Macy, Finance Director 
CC:   Tim Shea, Executive Director CVE  
Re:  CVE Water Leak – Abatement Request 
Date:   March 1, 2021 
 
Issue: 
The issue is to present the Trustees with an abatement request from the Champlain Valley 
Exposition stemming from an in-ground water leak.  
 
Discussion: 
A diagram is attached to this memo to visualize the setup.  This diagram is not to scale or the actual 
route that the water line takes but will help support discussion.  You will see a Meter B on the 
diagram that has been installed since the leak was fixed.  
 
CVE and nine other accounts are all on a private water system that begins from Pearl Street at the 
entrance to CVE (meter A), runs through CVE property and then feeds the other nine accounts 
(meters 1-9).  This is a ganged meter setup in the accounting system that takes a reading at the first 
meter entering CVE from Pearl Street and then subtracts the usage on the other nine accounts and 
bills that back to CVE.  This ensures that every gallon is only counted once in our database and in 
theory that each user is charged for their actual usage.  
 
Throughout 2020, there was a leak, in the ground after the water line exited CVE property but 
prior to going through any of the other meters.  Because of the meter gang setup, this resulted in 
CVE being charged water usage, sewer usage, and sanitation usage fees on the leaked water.  
Because CVE is a commercial account in the Village, this increased usage caused an increase in 
the number of equivalent units assigned to the CVE account in July.  [A note here: all commercial 
properties in the Village have their flat fees calculated based on a number of equivalent units.  One 
equivalent unit is equal to 120 gallons per day.  The number of units on each account is 
recalculated once per year in June based on the prior years’ worth of billed usage.  With no 
consideration given for what precipitated that usage – e.g. leaky toilet in a business vs. actual 
business usage.] 
 
This leak was significant.  As we all know, there was very little activity at CVE during 2020 as a 
result of the pandemic.  However, the water usage billed to CVE during 2020 was 1,153,570 
gallons higher than the average annual usage over the prior two years (2019 and 2018) when 
regular events were happening throughout the year.  Because there was no Meter B during this 
time, we cannot know how much of the water that went through the CVE meter was used by CVE 
and how much was leaked into the ground.  We can say with reasonable assurance that at least the 
1,153,570 gallons above the average was leaked because we know that activity was lower than 
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normal.  In consideration of abatement, I think it would be reasonable to use the average of the 
two prior years to recalculate what should have been paid.   

The leak increased the equivalent units on this account from 40.5 in 2018, and 41.40 in 2019 to 
67.70 in 2020.  In consideration of abatement, if usage were to be brought down to the average of 
the two prior years, equivalent units would follow since they are based on usage.  

On December 6, 2020 the leak was fixed.  Since then Meter B has also been installed in order to 
reconcile the usage that is specific to CVE and help with early detection in case there are any future 
leaks.  

There are three pieces of this request to be considered:  
(1) Would the trustees agree to abate the usage charges for sewer and sanitation associated

with the water leak?  Would result in a refund of:  $2,427.65

(2) Would the trustees agree to reduce the water usage charge from the Village resale rate to
the CWD wholesale rate in effect at the time of each billing?  Would result in a refund of:
$740.91

(3) Would the trustees agree to reevaluate the FY21 and future equivalent units assigned to the
CVE account as a result of the leak?  Would result in a refund of: $4,426.59

Cost:  
Refund paid to CVE: $7,595.15; adjustment to current bill using the same method described in the 
memo.  

Recommendation:  
Staff recommends the Trustees review the information provided, discuss the situation with CVE 
representatives present, and make a determination regarding each of the three components of the 
abatement request detailed in this memo.  

Should the Trustees authorize abatement in any or all of the three categories requested, please also 
authorize staff to make the calculation on the March 15, 2021 water bill which unfortunately 
was not available when making the calculations in this memo but does include leakage that 
occurred up to December 6, 2020.  I will calculate the bill adjustment using prior year averages 
as described earlier in this memo.  
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RATE UNITS Billed RATE UNITS Adj to Ave/wholeAbate Sani/Sewer Reduce to Wholesale Reduce flats
11/13/2020

Water Flat 28.60$                67.7 1,936.22$           28.60$                 40.95                                  1,171.17$           765.05$        

Water Usage 0.0198$             82,600.00             1,635.48$           2.3630$               617.93                                1,460.17$           175.31$                           

Sewer Flat 28.48$                67.7 1,928.10$           28.48$                 40.95                                  1,166.26$           761.84$        

Sewer Usage 0.0108$             82,600.00             888.78$              0.0108$               59,600.00                          641.30$               247.48$                   
Sanitation Flat 25.66$                67.7 1,737.18$           25.66$                 40.95                                  1,050.78$           686.41$        

Sanitation Usage 0.0060$             82,600.00             495.60$              0.0060$               59,600.00                          357.60$               138.00$                   
8,621.35$           5,847.27$           385.48$                    175.31$                           2,213.30$    

RATE UNITS Billed RATE UNITS Adj to Ave/wholeAbate Sani/Sewer Reduce to Wholesale Reduce flats
7/31/2020

Water Flat 28.60$                67.7 1,936.22$           28.60$                 40.95                                  1,171.17$           765.05$        

Water Usage 0.0198$             66,400.00             1,314.72$           2.3630$               496.74                                1,173.79$           140.93$                           

Sewer Flat 28.48$                67.7 1,928.10$           28.48$                 40.95                                  1,166.26$           761.84$        

Sewer Usage 0.01076$           66,400.00             714.46$              0.0108$               59,600.00                          641.30$               73.17$                      
Sanitation Flat 25.66$                67.7 1,737.18$           25.66$                 40.95                                  1,050.78$           686.41$        

Sanitation Usage 0.0060$             66,400.00             398.40$              0.0060$               59,600.00                          357.60$               40.80$                      
8,029.08$           5,560.89$           113.97$                    140.93$                           2,213.30$    

RATE UNITS Billed RATE UNITS Adj to Ave/wholeAbate Sani/Sewer Reduce to Wholesale Reduce flats
5/29/2020

Water Flat 26.86$                41.4 1,112.00$           26.86$                 41.40                                  1,112.00$           ‐$               

Water Usage 0.0188 132,300.00           2,487.24$           2.2800$               989.74                                2,256.60$           230.64$                           

Sewer Flat 25.82$                41.4 1,068.95$           25.82$                 41.40                                  1,068.95$           ‐$               

Sewer Usage 0.0098 132,300.00           1,296.54$           0.0098 59,600.00                          584.08$               712.46$                   
Sanitation Flat 24.48$                41.4 1,013.47$           24.48$                 41.40                                  1,013.47$           ‐$               

Sanitation Usage 0.0057 132,300.00           754.11$              0.0057 59,600.00                          339.72$               414.39$                   
7,732.31$           6,374.82$           1,126.85$                 230.64$                           ‐$              

RATE UNITS Billed RATE UNITS Adj to Ave/wholeAbate Sani/Sewer Reduce to Wholesale Reduce flats
1/31/2020

Water Flat 26.86$                41.4 1,112.00$           26.86$                 41.40                                  1,112.00$           ‐$               

Water Usage 0.0188 111,300.00           2,092.44$           2.2800$               832.64                                1,898.41$           194.03$                           

Sewer Flat 25.82$                41.4 1,068.95$           25.82$                 41.40                                  1,068.95$           ‐$               

Sewer Usage 0.0098 111,300.00           1,090.74$           0.0098 59,600.00                          584.08$               506.66$                   
Sanitation Flat 24.48$                41.4 1,013.47$           24.48$                 41.40                                  1,013.47$           ‐$               

Sanitation Usage 0.0057 111,300.00           634.41$              0.0057 59,600.00                          339.72$               294.69$                   
7,012.01$           6,016.63$           801.35$                    194.03$                           ‐$              

31,394.76$         23,799.62$         2,427.65$                 740.91$                           4,426.59$    
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MEMORANDUM 
TO:  Evan Teich, Unified Manager, Trustees 

FROM: Robin Pierce, Community Development Director 

DATE: March 9th 2021 

SUBJECT: CVE pandemic response request.  

 

The issue is whether the Trustees wish to approve a onetime addition to the CVE Sound 

Agreement as a special dispensation due to the pandemic.  

 

Discussion 

Further to the Trustee meeting on February 23rd CVE have provided the following answers to 

questions asked by the Trustees.  

 

*We are not requesting that fireworks be approved for any of the events. 

*If we move forward, the first event would be high school graduations so we do not anticipate 

any events on school nights.  

*10:00pm curfew midweek, 10:30pm on Friday and Saturday nights.  

*All events will be in compliance with the State of Vermont and the CDC guidelines for 

masking, social distancing etc.  

*Any requirements from the Sound Agreement between the Village and CVE will be adhered to.  

 

 

Recommendation 

CVE is in crisis mode.  It is an asset to the Village and the broader Chittenden County 

community.  Staff recommends that the Trustees approve this one time request for 30 additional 

amplified events in 2021, if the State permits such events this year, with the caveat that all events 

shall comply with the Sound Agreement that is in place between CVE and the Village.    

 

http://www.essexjunction.org/


Memorandum 
To: Board of Trustees; Evan Teich, Unified Manager 
Cc:  Marguerite Ladd, Assistant Manager 
From: Greg Duggan, Deputy Manager 
Re: Discussion on how the Village should proceed based upon the merger vote 
Date:  March 5, 2021 

Issue 
The issue is for the Trustees to discuss how the Village should proceed based upon the merger vote. 
 
Discussion 
Following the results of the March 2 vote on whether the Town of Essex shall adopt the Plan of Merger 
of the Town of Essex, Vermont and Village of Essex Junction, Vermont dated January 11, 2021 and the 
proposed Charter for the merged municipalities, the Trustees may wish to discuss how the Village 
should proceed with next steps.  
 
The preliminary results of the vote were 3,734 in favor of the merger, 3,751 opposed.  
 
Cost 
N/a 
 
Recommendation 
This memo is for discussion.  



Memorandum 
To: Board of Trustees; Evan Teich, Unified Manager 
Cc:  Marguerite Ladd, Assistant Manager; Linda Mahns, Administrative Assistant 
From: Greg Duggan, Deputy Manager 
Re: Appointing non-residents to volunteer boards 
Date:  March 5, 2021 

Issue 
The issue is whether the Trustees want to appoint non-residents to volunteer boards, commissions, and 
committees.  
 
Discussion 
The Trustees recently interviewed an applicant for the Tree Advisory Committee who is not a resident of 
Essex Junction. The Trustees wanted to have a further discussion about whether to allow nonresidents 
on Village boards, commissions, and committees. 
 
Cost 
N/a 
 
Recommendation 
This memo is for discussion.  



Memorandum 
 

To:  Village Trustees; Evan Teich, Unified Manager 
From: Marguerite Ladd, Assistant Manager  
Re: Warning for 2021 Annual Meeting 
Date: March 3rd, 2021 

 

Issue 
The issue is whether the Trustees will approve the warning (attached) for the 2021 Informational 
Meeting and Annual Meeting.  
 
Discussion 
 
The 2021 Informational Meeting is currently scheduled to take place on April 7th and Annual Meeting 
will take place on April 13th, both will be held remotely.  
 
There will be six articles on the proposed warning: 

I. adoption of the budget; 
II. authorization to transfer Land Acquisition Fund balance to Economic Dev. Fund; 
III. approval of extending the one cent Capital Improvement tax; 
IV.  approval of dates for 2022 Annual Meeting; and 
V. elections (Moderator, Village Trustees, Library Trustee)  

 
The Annual Meeting must be warned between March 4th and March 14th. 
 
Cost 
None. 
 
Recommendation 
It is recommended that the Trustees approve and sign the warning for the 2021 Informational Meeting 
and Annual Meeting. 
 
 



COVID-19 UPDATE: Due to the Covid-19, this meeting will be held remotely. Available options to watch or join the meeting:  
 

• WATCH: The meeting will be live-streamed on Town Meeting TV.  

• JOIN ONLINE: Join via Zoom Meeting https://zoom.us/j/95576633602?pwd=VFN4YWhYSUhvb3dNQ0NxT3lNeU5tZz09 

• JOIN CALLING: (646) 558-8656 US (New York) , Meeting ID: 955 7663 3602, Passcode: 538553 

• MODERATOR: All instructions for conduct of the hearing will be guided by the Moderator. 
If you have difficulty accessing the hearing, please call (802) 878-1341 or email manager@essex.org. 

WARNING 
VILLAGE OF ESSEX JUNCTION  

INFORMATIONAL HEARING APRIL 7, 2021 AND  
ANNUAL MEETING APRIL 13, 2021 

 
Informational Hearing 

Wednesday, April 7        [7:00 PM] 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The 2021 Village Annual Meeting will be held entirely by Australian ballot. A public informational hearing on the 
Articles to be voted on at Village Annual Meeting will be held according to 17 V.S.A. § 2680.  No voting will take 
place during this hearing.  If you wish to make a public comment but do not have the ability to comment remotely 
during the meeting, please email your comment(s) to the Unified Manager at manager@essex.org by 4:30 p.m. on 
Tuesday, April 6. Agenda will include discussion of articles and public to be heard. 

 
Annual Meeting 
 Tuesday, April 13  

 
 

 
ARTICLE 1.  Shall the voters approve an annual General Fund Budget in the amount of $5,641,278 for 
fiscal year July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022, $3,745,866 of which is to be levied in taxes against the Village 
Grand List? 
 
ARTICLE 2.  Shall the Village authorize the transfer of the remaining balance in the Land Acquisition 
Fund, estimated balance to be approximately $82,700, to the Economic Development Fund to be used for 
downtown development. 
 
ARTICLE 3.  Shall the voters approve extending the one cent Capital Improvement tax (also known as 
Economic Development tax), as established in 2016, to be reconsidered at annual meeting in 2024. 
  
ARTICLE 4.   Shall the annual stipend for the position of a Trustee of the Village Board of Trustees be 
raised from $500 to $1,000? 
 
ARTICLE 5.   Shall the voters approve holding the 2022 Annual Meeting on Wednesday, April 6, 2022 to 
act upon any articles not involving voting by Australian ballot and to reconvene on Tuesday, April 12, 2022 
to vote for the Village officers and transact any business involving voting by Australian ballot?   
 
ARTICLE 6.  To elect Village officers required by law including:  Moderator (one-year term); two Village 
Trustees (2 three-year terms); one Library Trustee (five-year term)? 

 
Dated at Essex Junction, Vermont, this 9th day of March, 2021 by the Village Board of Trustees 
 

 
 
 
Andrew Brown, President 

 
 
 
George Tyler, Vice President 

 
 
 
Daniel Kerin 

 
 
 
Attest: Susan McNamara-Hill, Clerk 

 
 
 
Raj Chawla 

 
 
 
Amber Thibeault 

 
 

 

The legal voters of the Village of Essex Junction are hereby notified and warned to meet at the Essex 
Community Educational Center on Educational Drive in the Village of Essex Junction on Tuesday, April 13, 
2021 to transact the following business by Australian ballot.  Said voting by Australian ballot to begin at 7:00 
AM and close at 7:00 PM. 

 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=oMB68tThCys&list=PLljLFn4BZd2NDBcfrHVdIR7eUeko7haxg
https://zoom.us/j/95576633602?pwd=VFN4YWhYSUhvb3dNQ0NxT3lNeU5tZz09
mailto:manager@essex.org


Memorandum  
To: Board of Trustees; Evan Teich, Unified Manager 
Cc: Marguerite Ladd, Assistant Manager  
From: Greg Duggan, Deputy Manager 
Re:  Executive session for legal services  
Date:  March 5, 2021 

Issue  
The issue is whether the Trustees enter into executive session to discuss confidential attorney-client 
communications made for the purpose of providing professional legal services to the body.  
 
Discussion 
In order to have a complete and thorough discussion about this topic, it would appear that an executive 
session would be necessary because the premature disclosure of the information may put the Trustees 
and the Village at a substantial disadvantage. Confidential attorney-client communications made for the 
purpose of providing professional legal services to the body can be a protected discussion.  
 
Cost 
N/A 
 
Recommendation 
If the Trustees wish to enter executive session, the following motions are recommended: 
 

Motion #1 
“I move that the Trustees make the specific finding that general public knowledge of 
confidential attorney-client communications made for the purpose of providing professional 
legal services to the body would place the Village at a substantial disadvantage.” 
 
Motion #2 
“I move that the Trustees enter into executive session to discuss confidential attorney-client 
communications made for the purpose of providing professional legal services to the body, 
pursuant to 1 V.S.A. § 313(a)(1)(F) to include the Village Attorney (and, if desired, Unified 
Manager, Assistant Manager, and Deputy Manager).” 

 



TRUSTEES 

(DRAFT)          February 23, 2021 

VILLAGE OF ESSEX JUNCTION 1 
TRUSTEES MEETING MINUTES 2 

February 23, 2021 3 
  4 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Andrew Brown, President; George Tyler, Vice President; Raj Chawla; Dan 5 
Kerin; Amber Thibeault  6 
 7 
ADMINISTRATION and STAFF: Evan Teich, Unified Manager; Tammy Getchell, Assistant to the 8 
Manager; Sarah Macy, Finance Director; Robin Pierce, Community Development Director; Travis 9 
Sabataso, Human Resources Director 10 
 11 
OTHERS PRESENT: Kevin Collins; Annie Cooper; Patty Davis; Roseanne Prestipino; Steve Rivard; 12 
Saramichelle Stultz; Tim Shea.  13 
 14 
1. CALL TO ORDER 15 

Mr. Brown called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM. 16 
 17 
2. AGENDA ADDITIONS/ CHANGES  18 

Ms. Getchell requested the addition of new agenda item 6e, Ratifying and Reaffirming Unified 19 
Manager Contract Extension Terms. She also requested the addition of a memo from the HR 20 
Director, of the same name, for this agenda item. The previous item 6e, **Discuss the evaluation of 21 
a public official, became item 6f. 22 
 23 

3. APPROVE AGENDA 24 
 25 
GEORGE TYLER made a motion, seconded by RAJ CHAWLA, to approve the agenda as 26 
amended. The motion passed 5-0. 27 
 28 
4. PUBLIC TO BE HEARD 29 
a. Comments from public on items not on the agenda. 30 

There were no comments from the public at this time.  31 
 32 

5. PUBLIC HEARING 33 
a. Second Public Hearing on Fiscal Year 2022 Proposed Budgets and Capital Programs  34 

Mr. Brown opened the Public Hearing at 6:35 PM and Ms. Macy gave an overview of the FY2022 35 
Proposed Budgets and Capital Programs. She said the General Fund is similar to the previous 36 
year’s budget, except for a formatting change to move the Highway and Rolling Stock. She 37 
summarized the General Fund FY2021 budget and proposed FY2022 budget changes, along with 38 
contributing factors in Salaries and Benefits; Capital Transfer; Repairs & Maintenance Buildings; 39 
Board Stipends; Professional Services; Salary Study; Paving; Salt costs and Other (Net 40 
decreases). She presented the Estimated Tax Impact:  41 

 FY2021 Budget FY2022 Proposed Budget $ Change % Change 

Tax Levy $3,670,039 $3,745,866   $75,827   2.1% 

Tax Rate $0.3302 $0.3334   $0.0032   0.97% 

 42 
Ms. Macy said the estimated tax increase to a $280,000 Village property is $8.96. She explained 43 
how increases to other revenue sources and the estimated Grand List increase of 0.84% impacted 44 
the budget and how the Village of Essex Junction Homestead Tax Rates are used (65% on 45 
Schools, 21% on Town of Essex services and 14% on Village of Essex Junction services.) Ms. 46 
Macy provided a Summary of Capital Funds, including proposed spending and notes for the 47 
Capital Reserve; Rolling Stock; Essex Junction Recreation & Parks Capital; Water Capital; 48 
Wastewater Treatment Facility Capital; and Sanitation Capital. She summarized Enterprise funds 49 
for FY2021 and FY2022, to illustrate changes from FY2021 to FY2022 in the EJRP Program Fund; 50 
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Water Fund; WWTF Fund and Sanitation Fund. Ms. Macy said Enterprise funds are user fee 51 
funds, not tax-driven funds. She talked about WWTF flow increase costs, increased regulations, 52 
bond payments, and the meter replacement program. She summarized Estimated Utility Rate 53 
Changes in Water, WWTF, and Sanitation from FY2021 to FY2022. 54 
 55 
Mr. Brown reiterated that the increase to the EJRP budget is not at all funded by taxes, so will not 56 
affect the tax rate. He said the cost of childcare is not increasing, but the offering is expanding. He 57 
also clarified that the Densmore Drive project is expecting at least a 75% reimbursement from 58 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). Mr. Teich confirmed that the cost of this project 59 
will mostly be paid for by the Federal Government, not through taxes.  60 
 61 
There were no comments from the public at this time so Mr. Brown closed the Public Hearing at 62 
6:50 PM. 63 
 64 

6. BUSINESS ITEMS 65 
a. *Interview and consider appointment of volunteer Steve Rivard to Tree Advisory Committee 66 

Mr. Brown welcomed Mr. Rivard to interview for the Tree Advisory Committee appointment. He 67 
said they would conduct the interview during this meeting and determine the appointment at a 68 
future meeting so the Trustees can discuss a Tree Advisory Committee policy that states all 69 
committee members must live in the Village. He said Mr. Rivard owns property in the Village but 70 
lives in a neighboring community.  71 
 72 
Mr. Brown asked Mr. Rivard why he wanted to serve on the Tree Advisory Committee. He said he 73 
loves the Village and its trees, he is a native Vermonter, and he knows some of the committee 74 
members. He said he helps promote the Village as a Tree City USA-endorsed community. He said 75 
he has helped with Arbor Day presentations; is a board member of Branchout Burlington; helps 76 
with local tree care, to promote healthy trees and canopy; and enjoys community engagement. Mr. 77 
Tyler asked Mr. Rivard for his feedback on the local trees. Mr. Rivard suggested that new buildings 78 
should provide room for trees next to the road and said he is proud of the Brickyard Drive Trees he 79 
helped plant. Mr. Tyler explained that the Planning Commission determines setbacks for buildings 80 
and the Tree Advisory Committee can provide advice to this commission as well as the Trustees. 81 
Mr. Chawla thanked Mr. Rivard for already helping and supporting the committee and for 82 
volunteering for a more official appointment. The rest of the Trustees also thanked him. 83 
 84 

b. Consider approval of Fiscal Year 2022 Proposed Budgets and Capital Programs 85 
Ms. Macy recapped the process leading up to this consideration for approval of the FY2022 86 
proposed budgets and capital programs, including board member and staff discussion during the 87 
Trustee’s budget day, followed by revisions, and two public hearings. She requested the Trustees 88 
approve the FY2022 proposed budgets and Capital Programs.  89 
 90 

GEORGE TYLER made a motion, and DAN KERIN seconded, that the Trustees adopt the 91 
various FY2022 budgets as presented. The motion passed 5-0.   92 

 93 
c. Consider approval of waivers for concert series 94 

Mr. Pierce introduced the issue of whether the Trustees would consider approval of 30 additional 95 
waivers for amplified events at the Champlain Valley Exposition (CVE) during the 2021 season, for 96 
a total of 50. He said the CVE had a significantly hard year, laying off staff and not hosting any 97 
concerts for income in 2020. He said this proposal could be a way for the municipality to support 98 
CVE this year, during and post pandemic.  99 
 100 
The Trustees discussed the proposal. Mr. Brown explained that these waivers would mostly be for 101 
concerts. Mr. Chawla asked how CVE chose to request 30 waivers, and Mr. Pierce said they 102 
worked back from the total loss from 2020 to determine the number. Mr. Chawla asked how the 103 
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concerts would be clustered, and what the date range would be, pointing out that 50 waivers could 104 
equate to a concert every two days during the summer. He expressed concern with this number. 105 
Ms. Thibeault added that neighboring community members would need to be notified of this 106 
change. Mr. Shea, the CVE Director joined the discussion. He and Mr. Pierce described strategies 107 
for notifying neighboring residents. Mr. Tyler suggested notifications to neighbors be conducted by 108 
Essex staff to help eliminate cost to CVE. Mr. Shea said putting out a full schedule is a challenge 109 
because they schedule concerts with entertainers who are routing. Ms. Thibeault requested 110 
clarification of the difference between amplified events and non-amplified events. Mr. Pierce 111 
explained that amplified events have speakers and non-amplified do not. Mr. Shea talked about 112 
stage directions and speaker projection distances. He said the amplified events would sound 113 
similar to fair concerts and would be subject to the same decibel limits. Ms. Thibeault suggested 114 
that a decision should not be made until community members are made aware of the request.  115 
 116 
Ms. Cooper talked about how concerts enliven life and encourage important social connectivity. 117 
However, she expressed concern that the sound would interrupt families who need to put children 118 
to bed for so many nights during the summer. She wondered if there could be more creative 119 
thinking for how sounds/entertainers could be less amplified.  120 
 121 
Ms. Stultz asked if there would be fireworks at these amplified events; if this extra 30 waivers 122 
would only take place this year, or if it would set a precedent for future years; and what months 123 
these events would take place. She said that a lot of notification should be made to the entire 124 
community at least a week in advance and encouraged a month in advance. Mr. Shea said there 125 
would be no fireworks at the events. He said the schedule includes June, July, and August. He 126 
mentioned that three schools are requesting the CVE be the location for their graduations.  127 
 128 
Ms. Marin said she lives at Countryside and every year calls the police about the noise coming 129 
from the CVE. She said she is unable to live peacefully because of the noise is too high to have 130 
conversations or hear her own music. She said thinking about the extra 30 waivers makes her 131 
think she may need to move. She strongly opposed them. 132 
 133 
Mr. Brown confirmed that Mr. Shea would need an answer to his request by March 12th. He said he 134 
wanted to include a caveat about neighbor notifications within a certain time period, and that the 135 
events not take place on school nights. Mr. Shea recapped some highlights of CVE efforts during 136 
the pandemic. He said, to date, the UVM vaccine center at CVE has administered 17,000 COVID 137 
vaccines and conducted13,000 COVID tests. He also talked about the food distribution efforts that 138 
took place there.  139 
 140 

d. Discussion regarding Municipal Ordinance Section 718 noise: regulating collection of 141 
refuse 142 
Mr. Pierce introduced the discussion about Ordinance section 718, of whether the Trustees would 143 
like staff to investigate or plan next steps for a noise standard that would apply to trash haulers. He 144 
said there have been complaints from residents related noise made by trash hauling that takes 145 
place early in the morning or late in the evening. He said other communities do have time frames 146 
written into their ordinances related to trash removal times. Ms. Thibeault suggested that the issue 147 
should be tabled until after the merger vote to determine whether it should be a consolidated 148 
ordinance. Mr. Chawla suggested times for trash hauling should be aligned with noise controls 149 
noted in the Land Development Code, in Section 4, Paragraph G. Mr. Pierce agreed with this 150 
suggestion. Mr. Tyler, Mr. Teich, and Mr. Brown talked about the lack of clarity at this 151 
point,regarding what impact changes to trash removal would have on retail or manufacturing 152 
businesses. Mr. Chawla wondered if certain areas should be exempt from a time change, but he 153 
was unsure where this would apply. Mr. Brown said staff should research what impact this change 154 

Commented [ML1]: Should this be a different word? 
Touring? Rotating? 

Commented [TG2R1]: No idea. May have to view the video 
for the answer.  It sounds like it’s wrong. 
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would have on newer buildings, single family homes, and businesses. Mr. Tyler suggested they 155 
research how this would impact the waste removal companies first.  156 
 157 
Ms. Cooper said that the Economic Development Commission is preparing business outreach 158 
channels. She said she could bring up whether the Commission would be willing to utilize their 159 
outreach channels to survey businesses about this issue. She agreed with Mr. Tyler that the trash 160 
haulers should be contacted first and pointed out that this type of change would be challenging for 161 
them due to the length of their routes. She suggested the beginning time for removal be 7:00 AM.  162 
Mr. Teich said staff would connect with trash haulers and local businesses and return to the 163 
Trustees in a few weeks with findings and suggestions.  164 
 165 

e. Ratifying and Reaffirming Unified Manager Contract Extension Terms 166 
Mr. Teich explained that this business item’s motion should have been made by the Trustees after 167 
an Executive Session February 3, 2020, but it was overlooked; he said passing the motion now 168 
would effectively ratify and reaffirm the Unified Manager Contract Extension Terms.  169 

 170 
GEORGE TYLER made a motion, seconded by RAJ CHAWLA, to ratify and reaffirm the 171 
decisions made in executive session to extend the contract of the Unified Manager, Evan 172 
Teich, with the Town of Essex and the Village of Essex Junction from February 26, 2021 to 173 
February 25, 2022, to authorize a $3,000 bonus to be paid on February 26, 2020, to authorize a 174 
3% pay increase to be effective February 26, 2020 and to amend the language in Section 3.E of 175 
the Unified Manager’s contract to require 180 days (six moths notice of non-renewal, made at 176 
the joint meeting of the Town of Essex Selectboard and the Village of Essex Junction Board of 177 
Trustees on February 3, 2020. The motion passed 5-0.  178 
 179 
e. f. **Discuss the evaluation of a public official 180 

This agenda item took place in executive session, as 6a. 181 
 182 

7. CONSENT ITEMS 183 
a. Approve minutes: February 9, 2021 184 
b. Consider approval for Certification of Highway Mileage 185 

• That the Trustees Sign the 2021 Certificate of Highway Milage as presented. 186 
c. Consider approval of Tri-Town Committee recommendation to deny Casella Waste Systems 187 

request for landfill leachate treatment 188 
• That the Trustees support the recommendation from the TriTown Committee to not 189 

accept the Coventry, VT landfill leachate for treatment.  190 
d. Check Warrants: #1727 – 2/5/21; #17238 – 2/12/21 191 
 192 
AMBER THIBEAULT made a motion, seconded by RAJ CHAWLA, to approve the Consent 193 
Agenda. The motion passed 5-0.  194 

 195 
8. READING FILE 196 
a. Board member comments 197 

Mr. Teich said the Town Meeting vote on Merger is scheduled for Tuesday, March 3. He reminded 198 
Village residents that they are ALSO residents of the Town so they should vote on March 3. He 199 
said they could drop ballots off in the ballot box outside the Town offices by 5 PM March 1; bring 200 
their ballots to the polls at the Highschool on March 2; or vote with a new ballot at the polls on 201 
March 2. He said the Informational Hearing on March 1 would be virtual and include a presentation 202 
of the budget as well as the Plan for Merger. He said Mr. Eustis would moderate the meeting and 203 
take questions. He said that over one thousand ballots had been returned so far, and he thanked 204 
the Board of Civil Authority for their work sorting ballots. He requested that all votes include the 205 
voters full name and address on the ballot to determine who voted from which district.  206 
 207 
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Ms. Stultz said she supported Mr. Rivard to be appointed to the Tree Advisory Board. 208 
  209 

b. Email from Elaine Haney re: Town concerns re: H.124, Vermont Employment Growth 210 
Incentive 211 

c. Email from James Jutras re: Legislative priorities 212 
d. Email from Peter Gustafson re: Planting trees this spring 213 
e. Memo from Susan re: 2021 Candidate/Election Information 214 
f. Email from Madeline Orsini re: Senior Center 215 
g. Email from Charles Cole re: Family 216 
h. Upcoming meeting schedule 217 

   218 
9. EXECUTIVE SESSION 219 
a. *An executive session may be requested to discuss the appointment of a public official. 220 
b. **An executive session is anticipated to discuss the evaluation of a public official 221 
 222 
ANDREW BROWN made a motion, and GEORGE TYLER seconded, that the Trustees enter into 223 
executive session to discuss the evaluation of a public official in accordance with 1 V.S.A. 224 
Section 313(a)(3), to include the HR Director. The motion passed 5-0 at 8:10 PM.  225 
 226 
GEORGE TYLER made a motion, seconded by DAN KERIN, to end Executive Session. The 227 
motion passed 5-0 at 9:15 PM. 228 
 229 
ADJOURN  230 
 231 
AMBER THIBEAULT made a motion, and DAN KERIN seconded, that the Trustees adjourn the 232 
meeting. The motion passed 5-0 at 9:16 PM 233 
 234 
 235 
Respectfully Submitted, 236 
Cathy Ainsworth 237 



Memo 

 

To: Village Trustees 

 

From: Brad Luck, Director, Essex Junction Recreation & Parks (EJRP) 

 

Date: February 4, 2021 

 

Re: Maple Street Playground RFP Selection 

 

A sealed bid process was used to procure proposals for the design and replacement of a portion of the 

Maple Street Park playground. 

 

Five playground vendors submitted proposals.  The proposals were opened on Monday, February 22.  A 

six-member committee of EJRP employees separately evaluated and scored the proposals based on: 

 

• Design 

• Accessibility 

• Types and number of components 

• Pricing 

• Timeline 

• Drawings 

• Photos  

• References 

• Miscellaneous 
 

The total scores were tallied and a meeting was held to further discuss the proposals.  The committee 

was unanimous that no additional information was needed or questions needed to be answered. 

 

Pettinelli and Associates Inc. of Burlington, VT was selected with a total evaluation score of 427 points.  

The bid came in at $249,572.00. 

 

Other bids were from: 

Jill Hagen – BCI Burke Company – 247 points 

ME O’Brien & Sons, Inc. – 285 points 

New England Recreation Group – 300 points 

Dyana Martin – UltiPlay – 298 points 

 

The playground is being paid for out of EJRP’s capital fund.  In FY21, $55,000 was approved for the 

project.  In the FY22 proposed budget, another $55,000 is requested.  This amount will also be proposed 

in the FY23, FY24, and FY25 budgets.   

 

Requested Trustee Motion: 

I recommend that Pettinelli and Associates Inc. of Burlington, VT be awarded the contract for the design 

and replacement of a portion of Maple Street Park playground in the amount of $249,572.00. 
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05290      ADVANCE AUTO PARTS            02/08/21 ATF TYPE F                210-43110.626                   95.76    32781 02/19/21

                                                  552103952849              Vehicle Fuels

05290      ADVANCE AUTO PARTS            02/08/21 wiper blade               210-43110.432                   12.72    32781 02/19/21

                                                  552103952856              R&M Services - Vehicles

42665      AMAZON/SYNCB                  02/10/21 Y  A Coll  Prog, Vol Exp, 210-45551.641                   17.96    32784 02/19/21

                                                  009852 0210               JUVEN COLLECTION-PRNT & E

42665      AMAZON/SYNCB                  02/10/21 Y  A Coll  Prog, Vol Exp, 210-45551.640                   50.66    32784 02/19/21

                                                  009852 0210               ADULT COLLECTION-PRINT &

42665      AMAZON/SYNCB                  02/10/21 Y  A Coll  Prog, Vol Exp, 210-45551.837                  276.93    32784 02/19/21

                                                  009852 0210               CHILDRENS PROGRAMS

42665      AMAZON/SYNCB                  02/10/21 Y  A Coll  Prog, Vol Exp, 210-45551.836                   34.27    32784 02/19/21

                                                  009852 0210               ADULT PROGRAMS

42665      AMAZON/SYNCB                  02/10/21 Y  A Coll  Prog, Vol Exp, 210-45551.574                   57.96    32784 02/19/21

                                                  009852 0210               VOLUNTEER EXPENSES

42665      AMAZON/SYNCB                  02/10/21 Y  A Coll  Prog, Vol Exp, 210-45551.610                   43.83    32784 02/19/21

                                                  009852 0210               SUPPLIES

42665      AMAZON/SYNCB                  02/10/21 Y  A Coll  Prog, Vol Exp, 210-45551.340                   51.72    32784 02/19/21

                                                  009852 0210               COMPUTER EXPENSES

07155      AMERICAN ROCK SALT CO LLC     02/01/21 Bulk Ice Control Salt     210-43125.610                 4646.60    32785 02/19/21

                                                  0660836                   WINTER MAINTENANCE

07155      AMERICAN ROCK SALT CO LLC     02/03/21 Bulk Ice Control Salt     210-43125.610                 3019.80    32785 02/19/21

                                                  0661918                   WINTER MAINTENANCE

07155      AMERICAN ROCK SALT CO LLC     02/08/21 salt                      210-43125.610                 3124.80    32785 02/19/21

                                                  0664171                   WINTER MAINTENANCE

07465      BIBENS ACE HARDWARE INC       02/09/21 Rope Caulk preschool wind 210-45220.610                   31.96    32788 02/19/21

                                                  40473                     SUPPLIES

02235      BOUND TREE MEDICAL LLC        02/02/21 EMS Supplies              210-42220.615                 2920.87    32790 02/19/21

                                                  83938000                  EMS SUPPLIES

02235      BOUND TREE MEDICAL LLC        02/03/21 EMS Supplies              210-42220.615                  155.00    32790 02/19/21

                                                  83939877                  EMS SUPPLIES

00530      BRODART CO                    01/28/21 Youth Collection, Supplie 210-45551.641                    9.71    32791 02/19/21

                                                  B6077690                  JUVEN COLLECTION-PRNT & E

00530      BRODART CO                    01/28/21 Youth Collection, Supplie 210-45551.610                    0.80    32791 02/19/21

                                                  B6077690                  SUPPLIES

00530      BRODART CO                    01/28/21 Adult Collection, Supplie 210-45551.640                   76.41    32791 02/19/21

                                                  B6077699                  ADULT COLLECTION-PRINT &

00530      BRODART CO                    01/28/21 Adult Collection, Supplie 210-45551.610                    4.00    32791 02/19/21

                                                  B6077699                  SUPPLIES

00530      BRODART CO                    01/28/21 FASTips paid by Foundatio 210-49345.000                   58.27    32791 02/19/21

                                                  B6077700                  LIBRARY DONATION EXPENDIT

00530      BRODART CO                    01/28/21 FASTips paid by Foundatio 210-45551.610                    3.20    32791 02/19/21

                                                  B6077700                  SUPPLIES

00530      BRODART CO                    01/28/21 Youth Collection, Supplie 210-45551.641                   10.25    32791 02/19/21

                                                  B6077708                  JUVEN COLLECTION-PRNT & E

00530      BRODART CO                    01/28/21 Youth Collection, Supplie 210-45551.610                    0.80    32791 02/19/21

                                                  B6077708                  SUPPLIES

00530      BRODART CO                    01/28/21 Youth Collection, Supplie 210-45551.641                   26.11    32791 02/19/21

                                                  B6077717                  JUVEN COLLECTION-PRNT & E

00530      BRODART CO                    01/28/21 Youth Collection, Supplie 210-45551.610                    1.60    32791 02/19/21

                                                  B6077717                  SUPPLIES
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00530      BRODART CO                    01/28/21 Youth Programs, Supplies  210-45551.837                   19.16    32791 02/19/21

                                                  B6077719                  CHILDRENS PROGRAMS

00530      BRODART CO                    01/28/21 Youth Programs, Supplies  210-45551.610                    3.20    32791 02/19/21

                                                  B6077719                  SUPPLIES

00530      BRODART CO                    02/05/21 Adult Collection, Supplie 210-45551.640                  102.81    32791 02/19/21

                                                  B6083435                  ADULT COLLECTION-PRINT &

00530      BRODART CO                    02/05/21 Adult Collection, Supplie 210-45551.610                    4.80    32791 02/19/21

                                                  B6083435                  SUPPLIES

00530      BRODART CO                    02/05/21 Adult Collection, Supplie 210-45551.640                  414.64    32791 02/19/21

                                                  B6083541                  ADULT COLLECTION-PRINT &

00530      BRODART CO                    02/05/21 Adult Collection, Supplie 210-45551.610                   22.40    32791 02/19/21

                                                  B6083541                  SUPPLIES

16030      BROWN ELECTRIC                02/08/21 Rt 2A Bridge Light        210-41947.022                 2140.29    32792 02/19/21

                                                  35444                     Electricity - Fire Statio

16030      BROWN ELECTRIC                02/08/21 4 Railroad Ave            210-43115.622                  404.74    32792 02/19/21

                                                  35447                     Electricity - St/Traffic

03000      CARGILL SALT EASTERN INC      02/02/21 salt                      210-43125.610                 1551.00    32797 02/19/21

                                                  2905984447                WINTER MAINTENANCE

03000      CARGILL SALT EASTERN INC      02/02/21 salt                      210-43125.610                 1567.92    32797 02/19/21

                                                  2905984448                WINTER MAINTENANCE

03000      CARGILL SALT EASTERN INC      02/03/21 salt                      210-43125.610                 2257.41    32797 02/19/21

                                                  2905988106                WINTER MAINTENANCE

03000      CARGILL SALT EASTERN INC      02/04/21 salt                      210-43125.610                 2256.71    32797 02/19/21

                                                  2905991588                WINTER MAINTENANCE

03000      CARGILL SALT EASTERN INC      02/04/21 salt                      210-43125.610                 2275.74    32797 02/19/21

                                                  2905991589                WINTER MAINTENANCE

V04609     CENTER POINT LARGE PRINT      01/02/21 Adult Collection          210-45551.640                   93.48    32800 02/19/21

                                                  1823649                   ADULT COLLECTION-PRINT &

17025      COONRADT AMY                  02/01/21 1/26/20 Recording Secreta 210-41320.530                  149.24    32807 02/19/21

                                                  #0048                     COMMUNICATIONS

17025      COONRADT AMY                  02/11/21 Recording Secretary       210-41320.530                  127.92    32807 02/19/21

                                                  #0049                     COMMUNICATIONS

42640      DE LAGE LANDEN                02/11/21 Copier leases 2/15-3/14/2 210-45551.442                   80.72    32809 02/19/21

                                                  71428415                  Rental of Equipment

42640      DE LAGE LANDEN                02/11/21 Copier leases 2/15-3/14/2 210-45551.442                   80.74    32809 02/19/21

                                                  71428415                  Rental of Equipment

42640      DE LAGE LANDEN                02/11/21 Copier leases 2/15-3/14/2 210-43110.442                   72.59    32809 02/19/21

                                                  71428415                  EQUIPMENT RENTALS

42640      DE LAGE LANDEN                02/11/21 Copier leases 2/15-3/14/2 210-41320.442                  138.97    32809 02/19/21

                                                  71428415                  LEASED SERVICES

25715      DONALD L. HAMLIN CONSULT      02/11/21 VEJ-Misc Assistance 12/01 210-43110.330                  641.25    32810 02/19/21

                                                  20810 21121               Professional Services

25715      DONALD L. HAMLIN CONSULT      02/16/21 VEJ-Misc Assistance 2021  210-43110.330                  225.50    32810 02/19/21

                                                  21810 21621               Professional Services

35260      EAST COAST PRINTERS INC       01/27/21 Job Shirts                210-42220.612                 4303.10    32811 02/19/21

                                                  12242010                  UNIFORMS,BOOTS,ETC

19005      FIRSTLIGHT FIBER              02/01/21 Telephone, Technology Acc 210-45551.530                   48.69    32813 02/19/21

                                                  8548752                   TECHNOLOGY ACCESS

19005      FIRSTLIGHT FIBER              02/01/21 Telephone, Technology Acc 210-41945.021                   89.87    32813 02/19/21

                                                  8548752                   Telephone - Brownell
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34895      GAUTHIER TRUCKING, INC.       02/01/21 MSP Trash Removal         210-41943.026                  392.33    32815 02/19/21

                                                  1537960                   Contractual Svcs - Maple

07010      GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP     02/08/21 Solar Accounts 1/7 to 2/5 210-41947.020                  496.07    32821 02/19/21

                                                  020821D                   Electricity - 2 Lincoln S

07010      GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP     02/08/21 Solar Accounts 1/7 to 2/5 210-41947.022                  496.07    32821 02/19/21

                                                  020821D                   Electricity - Fire Statio

07010      GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP     02/08/21 Solar Accounts 1/7 to 2/5 210-43110.622                  340.89    32821 02/19/21

                                                  020821D                   ELECTRICAL SERVICE

07010      GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP     02/08/21 Solar Accounts 1/7 to 2/5 210-41947.021                  169.03    32821 02/19/21

                                                  020821D                   Electricity - Brownell

07010      GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP     02/08/21 Solar Accounts 1/7 to 2/5 210-43115.622                  400.64    32821 02/19/21

                                                  020821D                   Electricity - St/Traffic

07010      GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP     02/08/21 Solar Accounts 1/7 to 2/5 210-41947.023                  300.25    32821 02/19/21

                                                  020821D                   Electricity - Park St Sch

14025      LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS     02/10/21 LIfe Prem Mar 21 Village  210-41320.210                  121.81    32830 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

14025      LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS     02/10/21 LIfe Prem Mar 21 Village  210-41510.210                   40.61    32830 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   Group Insurance

14025      LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS     02/10/21 LIfe Prem Mar 21 Village  210-43110.210                  133.85    32830 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

14025      LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS     02/10/21 LIfe Prem Mar 21 Village  210-43151.210                   21.65    32830 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

14025      LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS     02/10/21 LIfe Prem Mar 21 Village  210-45551.210                  243.59    32830 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

14025      LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS     02/10/21 LIfe Prem Mar 21 Village  210-41970.210                   81.20    32830 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

14025      LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS     02/10/21 LIfe Prem Mar 21 Village  210-45110.210                  162.40    32830 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

14025      LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS     02/10/21 LIfe Prem Mar 21 Village  210-45220.210                   78.73    32830 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

23445      MATTHEW BENDER & CO., INC     01/26/21 Adult Collection          210-45551.640                  123.43    32832 02/19/21

                                                  23915307                  ADULT COLLECTION-PRINT &

23080      MVP HEALTH CARE INC           02/10/21 Health Prem Mar 21 Villag 210-41320.210                 3926.36    32837 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

23080      MVP HEALTH CARE INC           02/10/21 Health Prem Mar 21 Villag 210-43110.210                 5233.34    32837 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

23080      MVP HEALTH CARE INC           02/10/21 Health Prem Mar 21 Villag 210-43151.210                  903.31    32837 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

23080      MVP HEALTH CARE INC           02/10/21 Health Prem Mar 21 Villag 210-45551.210                 7176.93    32837 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

23080      MVP HEALTH CARE INC           02/10/21 Health Prem Mar 21 Villag 210-41970.210                 1351.59    32837 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

23080      MVP HEALTH CARE INC           02/10/21 Health Prem Mar 21 Villag 210-45110.210                 7595.91    32837 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

23080      MVP HEALTH CARE INC           02/10/21 Health Prem Mar 21 Villag 210-45220.210                 2027.38    32837 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

24960      NORTHEAST DELTA DENTAL        02/16/21 Dental Prem Mar 21 Villag 210-41320.210                  241.85    32840 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

24960      NORTHEAST DELTA DENTAL        02/16/21 Dental Prem Mar 21 Villag 210-41510.210                   70.86    32840 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   Group Insurance
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24960      NORTHEAST DELTA DENTAL        02/16/21 Dental Prem Mar 21 Villag 210-43110.210                  358.28    32840 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

24960      NORTHEAST DELTA DENTAL        02/16/21 Dental Prem Mar 21 Villag 210-43151.210                   52.03    32840 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

24960      NORTHEAST DELTA DENTAL        02/16/21 Dental Prem Mar 21 Villag 210-45551.210                  512.94    32840 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

24960      NORTHEAST DELTA DENTAL        02/16/21 Dental Prem Mar 21 Villag 210-41970.210                   74.38    32840 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

24960      NORTHEAST DELTA DENTAL        02/16/21 Dental Prem Mar 21 Villag 210-45110.210                  535.16    32840 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

24960      NORTHEAST DELTA DENTAL        02/16/21 Dental Prem Mar 21 Villag 210-45220.210                  108.05    32840 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

27240      OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY         02/10/21 Buildings maintenance --  210-41942.021                  318.72    32842 02/19/21

                                                  100400286561              R&M Bldg - Brownell

05380      PURCHASE POWER                02/05/21 Postage                   210-41320.536                  201.00    32844 02/19/21

                                                  8000-9090-1A              POSTAGE

27280      QUABBIN MEDIATION INC         02/15/21 Adult Programs            210-45551.836                  400.00    32845 02/19/21

                                                  1032021                   ADULT PROGRAMS

18010      REYNOLDS & SON, INC.          02/11/21 Two Helmet Fronts         210-42220.612                   91.20    32847 02/19/21

                                                  3385716                   UNIFORMS,BOOTS,ETC

18010      REYNOLDS & SON, INC.          02/11/21 Demo Gas Meter 4XR        210-42220.889                  750.00    32847 02/19/21

                                                  3385718                   ROUTINE EQUIPMENT PURCHAS

18010      REYNOLDS & SON, INC.          02/11/21 Boots / Cones             210-42220.612                  971.87    32847 02/19/21

                                                  3385719                   UNIFORMS,BOOTS,ETC

18010      REYNOLDS & SON, INC.          02/12/21 Cylinder disposal         210-42220.570                   40.00    32847 02/19/21

                                                  3385806                   MAINTENANCE OTHER

22840      RIES DANIEL                   02/01/21 Lobby Door Locks          210-45220.330                   98.00    32848 02/19/21

                                                  I210201424                OTHER PROFESSIONAL SVCS

03180      SAFETY SYSTEMS OF VT LLC      02/09/21 Fire Alarm System Annual  210-43110.434                  563.44    32853 02/19/21

                                                  20477                     MAINT. BUILDINGS/GROUNDS

17505      SAND HILL SOLAR LLC           02/11/21 Village Solar             210-41947.026                  179.10    32854 02/19/21

                                                  226                       Electricity - Maple St

17505      SAND HILL SOLAR LLC           02/11/21 Village Solar             210-41947.023                   30.69    32854 02/19/21

                                                  226                       Electricity - Park St Sch

17505      SAND HILL SOLAR LLC           02/11/21 Village Solar             210-41947.021                   61.38    32854 02/19/21

                                                  226                       Electricity - Brownell

17505      SAND HILL SOLAR LLC           02/11/21 Village Solar             210-41947.022                   35.68    32854 02/19/21

                                                  226                       Electricity - Fire Statio

17505      SAND HILL SOLAR LLC           02/11/21 Village Solar             210-41947.020                   35.68    32854 02/19/21

                                                  226                       Electricity - 2 Lincoln S

17505      SAND HILL SOLAR LLC           02/11/21 Village Solar             210-43115.622                   69.22    32854 02/19/21

                                                  226                       Electricity - St/Traffic

17505      SAND HILL SOLAR LLC           02/11/21 Village Solar             210-43110.622                   19.50    32854 02/19/21

                                                  226                       ELECTRICAL SERVICE

42565      SEVEN DAYS                    02/03/21 PUBLIC NOTICES            210-41320.550                   66.56    32856 02/19/21

                                                  209206                    PRINTING AND ADVERTISING

V2124      STAPLES ADVANTAGE             02/13/21 Volunteer expenses        210-45551.574                   10.59    32857 02/19/21

                                                  3469587713                VOLUNTEER EXPENSES

37680      TARRANT, GILLIES & RICHAR     01/31/21 Jan 2021                  210-41320.330                  360.00    32858 02/19/21

                                                  14703                     OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVIC
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05935      VT HUMANITIES COUNCIL         02/03/21 Adult Programs            210-45551.836                   75.00    32864 02/19/21

                                                  622/37509                 ADULT PROGRAMS

07565      W B MASON CO INC              01/21/21 Maint Supplies            210-45220.610                  713.65    32866 02/19/21

                                                  217291818                 SUPPLIES

07565      W B MASON CO INC              02/12/21 Supplies, Volunteer Expen 210-45551.610                   17.09    32866 02/19/21

                                                  217904791                 SUPPLIES

07565      W B MASON CO INC              02/12/21 Supplies, Volunteer Expen 210-45551.574                    6.00    32866 02/19/21

                                                  217904791                 VOLUNTEER EXPENSES

42640      DE LAGE LANDEN                02/11/21 Copier leases 2/15-3/14/2 225-45122.442                   94.15    32809 02/19/21

                                                  71428415                  Rental of Equipment

19815      AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES       02/16/21 RK EES Supplies           226-45120.610                   84.55    32783 02/19/21

                                                  1GNP196QC6NM              SUPPLIES

42430      CHADWICK ELIZA                02/12/21 RecKids Refund            226-34781.120                 1000.00    32801 02/19/21

                                                  93537                     Childcare - AS

42640      DE LAGE LANDEN                02/11/21 Copier leases 2/15-3/14/2 226-45110.442                  177.89    32809 02/19/21

                                                  71428415                  Equipment Rentals

27275      GRAVES STEPHEN                02/17/21 RK Workshop               226-45120.330                  200.00    32819 02/19/21

                                                  0001                      OTHER PROFESSIONAL SVCS

14025      LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS     02/10/21 LIfe Prem Mar 21 Village  226-45120.210                  400.11    32830 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

14025      LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS     02/10/21 LIfe Prem Mar 21 Village  226-45121.210                  157.27    32830 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

23080      MVP HEALTH CARE INC           02/10/21 Health Prem Mar 21 Villag 226-45120.210                 4730.56    32837 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

23080      MVP HEALTH CARE INC           02/10/21 Health Prem Mar 21 Villag 226-45121.210                 5149.54    32837 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

24960      NORTHEAST DELTA DENTAL        02/16/21 Dental Prem Mar 21 Villag 226-45120.210                  371.90    32840 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

24960      NORTHEAST DELTA DENTAL        02/16/21 Dental Prem Mar 21 Villag 226-45121.210                  341.96    32840 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

24830      REINHART FOODSERVICE          02/11/21 RK Fleming Snack          226-45120.610                  156.24    32846 02/19/21

                                                  435472                    SUPPLIES

24830      REINHART FOODSERVICE          02/15/21 RK EES Snack              226-45120.610                  190.75    32846 02/19/21

                                                  437204                    SUPPLIES

24830      REINHART FOODSERVICE          02/15/21 RK FMS Snack              226-45120.610                   68.77    32846 02/19/21

                                                  437325                    SUPPLIES

24830      REINHART FOODSERVICE          02/17/21 RK Summit Snack           226-45120.610                  155.05    32846 02/19/21

                                                  438820                    SUPPLIES

24830      REINHART FOODSERVICE          02/17/21 RK Hiawatha Snack         226-45120.610                   86.88    32846 02/19/21

                                                  438821                    SUPPLIES

05280      S & D LANDSCAPES LLC          02/09/21 Park Street Snow Removal  226-45121.330                  281.05    32850 02/19/21

                                                  21055                     OTHER PROFESSIONAL SVCS

25715      DONALD L. HAMLIN CONSULT      02/11/21 Crescent Connector        230-46801.008                 1268.75    32810 02/19/21

                                                  12833 21121               CRESCENT CONNECTOR

V9632      HOYLE, TANNER & ASSOC, IN     10/27/20 Brickyard Rd over IB      230-46801.023                 2460.50    32825 02/19/21

                                                  0063612                   Densmore Drive, non-FEMA

14025      LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS     02/10/21 LIfe Prem Mar 21 Village  254-43200.210                  100.93    32830 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

10110      MCGOVERN MECHANICAL CORP      02/10/21 Residential Water Meter R 254-43330.002                  250.00    32834 02/19/21

                                                  1618                      METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM
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23080      MVP HEALTH CARE INC           02/10/21 Health Prem Mar 21 Villag 254-43200.210                 4692.71    32837 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

24960      NORTHEAST DELTA DENTAL        02/16/21 Dental Prem Mar 21 Villag 254-43200.210                  261.89    32840 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

V2227      TI-SALES, INC.                02/09/21 water Meters              254-43330.002                 1464.60    32859 02/19/21

                                                  INV0127079                METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM

14685      ALLIANCE MECHANICAL INC       01/30/21 Filter Bldg Service       255-43200.570                  125.00    32782 02/19/21

                                                  046990                    MAINTENANCE OTHER

21210      CINTAS LOC # 68M 71 M         02/11/21 safety supplies           255-43200.610                  434.23    32803 02/19/21

                                                  5051748033                SUPPLIES

42640      DE LAGE LANDEN                02/11/21 Copier leases 2/15-3/14/2 255-43200.442                   80.74    32809 02/19/21

                                                  71428415                  Rental of Equipment

18000      FERGUSON WATERWORKS #590      02/16/21 WAS Meter                 255-43330.014                   21.20    32812 02/19/21

                                                  1005508                   VPIC Phase II Pilot Scale

14025      LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS     02/10/21 LIfe Prem Mar 21 Village  255-43200.210                  209.20    32830 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

23080      MVP HEALTH CARE INC           02/10/21 Health Prem Mar 21 Villag 255-43200.210                 7848.22    32837 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

24960      NORTHEAST DELTA DENTAL        02/16/21 Dental Prem Mar 21 Villag 255-43200.210                  454.16    32840 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

V9230      PREAVY RONNIE                 02/15/21 desk support              255-43200.570                   25.00    32843 02/19/21

                                                  1356                      MAINTENANCE OTHER

00275      SB SIGNS INC                  02/09/21 Chemical Area Sign Stock  255-43200.570                  380.00    32855 02/19/21

                                                  24607                     MAINTENANCE OTHER

07010      GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP     02/08/21 Solar Accounts 1/7 to 2/5 256-43200.622                  726.28    32821 02/19/21

                                                  020821D                   ELECTRICAL SERVICE

07010      GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP     02/08/21 Solar Accounts 1/7 to 2/5 256-43220.001                  516.62    32821 02/19/21

                                                  020821D                   SUSIE WILSON PS COSTS

07010      GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP     02/08/21 Solar Accounts 1/7 to 2/5 256-43220.002                  801.26    32821 02/19/21

                                                  020821D                   WEST ST PS COSTS

14025      LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS     02/10/21 LIfe Prem Mar 21 Village  256-43200.210                   95.16    32830 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

10110      MCGOVERN MECHANICAL CORP      02/10/21 Residential Water Meter R 256-43330.002                  500.00    32834 02/19/21

                                                  1618                      METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM

23080      MVP HEALTH CARE INC           02/10/21 Health Prem Mar 21 Villag 256-43200.210                 3353.29    32837 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

24960      NORTHEAST DELTA DENTAL        02/16/21 Dental Prem Mar 21 Villag 256-43200.210                  175.91    32840 02/19/21

                                                  030121V                   HEALTH INS & OTHER BENEFI

17505      SAND HILL SOLAR LLC           02/11/21 Village Solar             256-43220.002                   44.98    32854 02/19/21

                                                  226                       WEST ST PS COSTS

17505      SAND HILL SOLAR LLC           02/11/21 Village Solar             256-43220.001                   33.01    32854 02/19/21

                                                  226                       SUSIE WILSON PS COSTS

17505      SAND HILL SOLAR LLC           02/11/21 Village Solar             256-43200.622                   11.67    32854 02/19/21

                                                  226                       ELECTRICAL SERVICE

V2227      TI-SALES, INC.                02/09/21 water Meters              256-43330.002                 2929.20    32859 02/19/21

                                                  INV0127079                METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM
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                                Report Total                                                            115601.35
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...
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14400      ABOVE AND BEYOND              02/19/21 CLEANING SERVICES FEB 7-M 210-41943.020                  600.00    32869 02/26/21

                                                  5812                      Contractual Svc - 2 Linco

14400      ABOVE AND BEYOND              02/19/21 CLEANING SERVICES FEB 7-M 210-41943.021                 2212.75    32869 02/26/21

                                                  5812                      Contractual Svcs - Browne

05290      ADVANCE AUTO PARTS            02/12/21 HYDRAULIC hose            210-43110.432                   97.99    32870 02/26/21

                                                  552104398139              R&M Services - Vehicles

05290      ADVANCE AUTO PARTS            02/15/21 screws                    210-43110.610                   11.74    32870 02/26/21

                                                  552104653201              SUPPLIES

05290      ADVANCE AUTO PARTS            02/17/21 hand cleaner              210-43110.610                   24.37    32870 02/26/21

                                                  552104853304              SUPPLIES

05290      ADVANCE AUTO PARTS            02/18/21 masks                     210-43110.610                   19.40    32870 02/26/21

                                                  552104998382              SUPPLIES

07155      AMERICAN ROCK SALT CO LLC     02/12/21 Salt                      210-43125.610                 4654.30    32874 02/26/21

                                                  0666889                   WINTER MAINTENANCE

04310      APALACHEE MARINE              02/08/21 Salt                      210-43125.610                 6259.03    32875 02/26/21

                                                  61777                     WINTER MAINTENANCE

00530      BRODART CO                    02/04/21 Adult FASTips: Foundation 210-49345.000                   30.22    32882 02/26/21

                                                  B6082752                  LIBRARY DONATION EXPENDIT

00530      BRODART CO                    02/04/21 Adult FASTips: Foundation 210-45551.610                    1.60    32882 02/26/21

                                                  B6082752                  SUPPLIES

00530      BRODART CO                    02/09/21 Youth Collection          210-45551.641                   53.95    32882 02/26/21

                                                  B6085752                  JUVEN COLLECTION-PRNT & E

00530      BRODART CO                    02/09/21 Youth Collection          210-45551.610                    4.00    32882 02/26/21

                                                  B6085752                  SUPPLIES

00530      BRODART CO                    02/09/21 Adult Collection          210-45551.640                   15.12    32882 02/26/21

                                                  B6085790                  ADULT COLLECTION-PRINT &

00530      BRODART CO                    02/09/21 Adult Collection          210-45551.610                    0.80    32882 02/26/21

                                                  B6085790                  SUPPLIES

00530      BRODART CO                    02/10/21 Youth Collection          210-45551.641                    7.11    32882 02/26/21

                                                  B6086839                  JUVEN COLLECTION-PRNT & E

00530      BRODART CO                    02/10/21 Foundation book           210-49345.000                    4.79    32882 02/26/21

                                                  B6086925                  LIBRARY DONATION EXPENDIT

00530      BRODART CO                    02/10/21 Youth Collection          210-45551.641                    5.99    32882 02/26/21

                                                  B6086979                  JUVEN COLLECTION-PRNT & E

00530      BRODART CO                    02/11/21 Adult                     210-45551.640                   10.00    32882 02/26/21

                                                  B6087781                  ADULT COLLECTION-PRINT &

00530      BRODART CO                    02/11/21 Adult Collection          210-45551.640                   42.33    32882 02/26/21

                                                  B6087858                  ADULT COLLECTION-PRINT &

00530      BRODART CO                    02/11/21 Youth Award books: Founda 210-49345.000                   31.93    32882 02/26/21

                                                  B6087859                  LIBRARY DONATION EXPENDIT

00530      BRODART CO                    02/11/21 Adult Collection          210-45551.640                   51.58    32882 02/26/21

                                                  B6087863                  ADULT COLLECTION-PRINT &

21120      CHAMPLAIN MEDICAL URGENT      01/30/21 Physicals                 210-42220.566                  345.00    32887 02/26/21

                                                  0004263400                PHYSICAL EXAMS

21120      CHAMPLAIN MEDICAL URGENT      02/15/21 Physicals                 210-42220.566                  345.00    32887 02/26/21

                                                  0004294000                PHYSICAL EXAMS

21210      CINTAS LOC # 68M 71 M         02/18/21 supplies                  210-43110.610                   80.17    32889 02/26/21

                                                  4076334790                SUPPLIES

23525      CLARK'S TRUCK CENTER INC      02/22/21 Def                       210-43110.626                   26.97    32890 02/26/21

                                                  443782                    Vehicle Fuels
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04940      COMCAST                       02/12/21 TV  Internet 2/19 to 3/18 210-43110.610                  179.50    32891 02/26/21

                                                  0091811 0221              SUPPLIES

04940      COMCAST                       02/12/21 TV  Internet 2/19 to 3/18 210-43125.610                   60.99    32891 02/26/21

                                                  0091811 0221              WINTER MAINTENANCE

31545      COSTCO #314                   02/18/21 Supplies                  210-42220.610                   94.91    32893 02/26/21

                                                  021820210947              SUPPLIES

31275      DON WESTON EXCAVATING INC     02/11/21 snow removal              210-43125.570                 4912.50    32896 02/26/21

                                                  15A                       CONTRACT SERVICES

21845      FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA     02/18/21 Youth  Adult Programs (in 210-45551.837                  150.00    32902 02/26/21

                                                  0017  021821              CHILDRENS PROGRAMS

21845      FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA     02/18/21 Youth  Adult Programs (in 210-45551.836                    3.14    32902 02/26/21

                                                  0017  021821              ADULT PROGRAMS

21845      FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA     02/18/21 Youth  Adult Programs (in 210-45551.530                  112.66    32902 02/26/21

                                                  0017  021821              TECHNOLOGY ACCESS

21845      FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA     02/18/21 Youth  Adult Programs (in 210-45551.610                  100.48    32902 02/26/21

                                                  0017  021821              SUPPLIES

19805      FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA     01/25/21 FNBO 9572 Jan             210-41320.340                  318.59    32905 02/26/21

                                                  9572 121                  COMPUTER EXPENSES

07010      GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP     02/11/21 GMP Non Solar Multi Accou 210-43115.622                 9865.90    32910 02/26/21

                                                  0206201221                Electricity - St/Traffic

07010      GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP     02/11/21 GMP Non Solar Multi Accou 210-43115.622                  718.28    32910 02/26/21

                                                  0206201221                Electricity - St/Traffic

07010      GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP     02/08/21 MSP Power Jan             210-41947.026                 1687.41    32912 02/26/21

                                                  0221EJPD                  Electricity - Maple St

07010      GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP     02/08/21 MSP Power Jan             210-41947.026                  135.29    32913 02/26/21

                                                  0221ERPD                  Electricity - Maple St

24250      IMPACT FIRE                   02/05/21 WATER FIRE EXTINGUISHER   210-42220.889                  195.00    32916 02/26/21

                                                  8628147                   ROUTINE EQUIPMENT PURCHAS

23095      JONES JOSHUA M                02/16/21 Lobby Doors Hardware      210-45220.330                  600.00    32921 02/26/21

                                                  1321                      OTHER PROFESSIONAL SVCS

06675      NATIONAL BUSINESS TECHNOL     02/19/21 Copier usages 1/18-2/17/2 210-45551.442                   56.56    32932 02/26/21

                                                  IN408803                  Rental of Equipment

06675      NATIONAL BUSINESS TECHNOL     02/19/21 Copier usages 1/18-2/17/2 210-43110.442                    1.06    32932 02/26/21

                                                  IN408803                  EQUIPMENT RENTALS

06675      NATIONAL BUSINESS TECHNOL     02/19/21 Copier usages 1/18-2/17/2 210-41320.442                   11.19    32932 02/26/21

                                                  IN408803                  LEASED SERVICES

V10729     OVERDRIVE INC                 01/25/21 Adult Collection          210-45551.640                  399.44    32938 02/26/21

                                                  21027144                  ADULT COLLECTION-PRINT &

V10729     OVERDRIVE INC                 02/05/21 Youth Collection          210-45551.641                  690.17    32938 02/26/21

                                                  21046572                  JUVEN COLLECTION-PRNT & E

V10729     OVERDRIVE INC                 02/12/21 Adult Collection          210-45551.640                  315.47    32938 02/26/21

                                                  21055840                  ADULT COLLECTION-PRINT &

V10729     OVERDRIVE INC                 02/17/21 Adult Collection          210-45551.640                  107.49    32938 02/26/21

                                                  DA21060427                ADULT COLLECTION-PRINT &

22840      RIES DANIEL                   02/19/21 Ace Lever Replacement     210-45220.330                  150.00    32942 02/26/21

                                                  021921D                   OTHER PROFESSIONAL SVCS

03180      SAFETY SYSTEMS OF VT LLC      02/09/21 FIRE ALARM INSPECTION VIL 210-41942.020                  487.62    32943 02/26/21

                                                  20476                     R&M Bldg - 2 Lincoln St

02970      USA BLUE BOOK INC             02/18/21 gloves                    210-43110.610                  372.19    32950 02/26/21

                                                  507268                    SUPPLIES
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24570      VT TROPHY & ENGRAVING         01/25/21 Awards                    210-42220.889                  353.00    32957 02/26/21

                                                  82217                     ROUTINE EQUIPMENT PURCHAS

23000      WHITCOMB                      12/30/20 shur pac                  210-43120.610                  771.66    32958 02/26/21

                                                  00713173                  Summer Const - Supplies

19815      AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES       02/16/21 RK Summit Supplies        226-45120.610                   13.98    32871 02/26/21

                                                  19JK3N17GK44              SUPPLIES

19815      AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES       02/17/21 SLS Wed Supplies          226-45120.610                  230.46    32871 02/26/21

                                                  1NDHPLL33NQ6              SUPPLIES

19815      AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES       02/20/21 RK FMS Supplies           226-45120.610                  162.01    32871 02/26/21

                                                  1QMNF9Q3G3KC              SUPPLIES

42665      AMAZON/SYNCB                  01/10/21 EJRP Amazon December      226-45120.610                  148.82    32872 02/26/21

                                                  0432266 0121              SUPPLIES

25595      AMERICAN RED CROSS            02/17/21 RK Staff CPR 1st Aid Trai 226-45120.330                  256.00    32873 02/26/21

                                                  22326911                  OTHER PROFESSIONAL SVCS

14570      METROROCK STATION / VERTI     02/12/21 Metro Rock ESP Enrichment 226-45120.330                  500.00    32928 02/26/21

                                                  84655                     OTHER PROFESSIONAL SVCS

14570      METROROCK STATION / VERTI     02/12/21 Metro Rock ESP Enrichment 226-45120.330                 2250.00    32928 02/26/21

                                                  84655                     OTHER PROFESSIONAL SVCS

14570      METROROCK STATION / VERTI     02/12/21 Metro Rock ESP Enrichment 226-45120.330                 1750.00    32928 02/26/21

                                                  84655                     OTHER PROFESSIONAL SVCS

06675      NATIONAL BUSINESS TECHNOL     02/19/21 Copier usages 1/18-2/17/2 226-45110.442                  418.44    32932 02/26/21

                                                  IN408803                  Equipment Rentals

24830      REINHART FOODSERVICE          02/18/21 SLS Wed Snack             226-45120.610                  275.23    32941 02/26/21

                                                  439133                    SUPPLIES

24830      REINHART FOODSERVICE          02/18/21 RK Fleming Snack          226-45120.610                   27.15    32941 02/26/21

                                                  439335                    SUPPLIES

24830      REINHART FOODSERVICE          02/18/21 RK Summit Snack CREDIT    226-45120.610                 -155.05    32941 02/26/21

                                                  439342                    SUPPLIES

24830      REINHART FOODSERVICE          02/18/21 RK Hiawatha Snack CREDIT  226-45120.610                  -86.88    32941 02/26/21

                                                  439344                    SUPPLIES

24830      REINHART FOODSERVICE          02/22/21 SLS Wed Snack             226-45120.610                   33.93    32941 02/26/21

                                                  440668                    SUPPLIES

25605      SAWMILL STUDIO                02/08/21 Woodworking Sets EPR Enri 226-45120.330                  900.00    32944 02/26/21

                                                  020821D                   OTHER PROFESSIONAL SVCS

26395      CCRPC                         12/31/20 MM SW Inventory Dec match 230-46801.024                  660.00    32885 02/26/21

                                                  20200774                  CCRPC UPWP Planning

V9632      HOYLE, TANNER & ASSOC, IN     02/18/21 Densmore Dr #2 (Upstream) 230-46801.023                 9563.75    32915 02/26/21

                                                  0064247                   Densmore Drive, non-FEMA

23435      CHAMPLAIN WATER DISTRICT      01/01/21 Village Water             254-43200.412                 1079.25    32888 02/26/21

                                                  012921V                   STATE WATER TAX

23435      CHAMPLAIN WATER DISTRICT      01/01/21 Village Water             254-43210.412                 5745.25    32888 02/26/21

                                                  012921V                   STATE WATER TAX - GF

23435      CHAMPLAIN WATER DISTRICT      01/01/21 Village Water             254-43200.411                49926.10    32888 02/26/21

                                                  012921V                   CWD WATER PURCHASE

23435      CHAMPLAIN WATER DISTRICT      01/01/21 Village Water             254-43210.411               265775.27    32888 02/26/21

                                                  012921V                   CWD WATER PURC - GF

07010      GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP     02/11/21 GMP Non Solar Multi Accou 254-43200.622                   88.47    32910 02/26/21

                                                  0206201221                ELECTRICAL SERVICE

03070      MINUTEMAN PRESS               11/23/20 11/2020 UB Bills          254-43200.536                  619.56    32930 02/26/21

                                                  52433                     POSTAGE



02/26/21                                   Town of Essex / Village of EJ Accounts Payable                                Page 4 of 5

01:03 pm                 Check Warrant Report # 17240 Current Prior Next FY Invoices For Fund (GENERAL FUND)                HPackard

                             For Check Acct 01(GENERAL FUND) All check #s 02/26/21 To 02/26/21 & Fund 2

                                         Invoice  Invoice Description                                      Amount   Check  Check

Vendor                                   Date     Invoice Number            Account                          Paid   Number Date

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

06870      ENDYNE INC                    02/19/21 SHT NY Bi-Monthly         255-43200.577                  316.00    32897 02/26/21

                                                  362429                    CONTRACT LABORATORY SERVI

06870      ENDYNE INC                    02/22/21 Qtrly Liquid annual PCB's 255-43200.577                  653.00    32897 02/26/21

                                                  362533                    CONTRACT LABORATORY SERVI

38955      F W WEBB COMPANY              02/16/21 Ferrous Cl Pump Parts     255-43200.570                  215.57    32899 02/26/21

                                                  70497188                  MAINTENANCE OTHER

18000      FERGUSON WATERWORKS #590      02/18/21 flange supplies           255-43330.012                   65.54    32900 02/26/21

                                                  1006088                   ALKALINITY CNTRL INSTALLA

18000      FERGUSON WATERWORKS #590      02/23/21 Backflow preventer rebuil 255-43200.570                 1623.06    32900 02/26/21

                                                  1006206                   MAINTENANCE OTHER

21740      FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA     02/18/21 WW Visa charges 1/7 to 2/ 255-43200.500                  391.00    32903 02/26/21

                                                  0124 021821               TRAINING, CONFERENCES, DU

21740      FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA     02/18/21 WW Visa charges 1/7 to 2/ 255-43200.570                  653.51    32903 02/26/21

                                                  0124 021821               MAINTENANCE OTHER

21740      FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA     02/18/21 WW Visa charges 1/7 to 2/ 255-43200.610                  162.77    32903 02/26/21

                                                  0124 021821               SUPPLIES

07010      GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP     02/17/21 39 Cascade  1/18 to 2/17/ 255-43200.622                13871.01    32909 02/26/21

                                                  0132407 221               ELECTRICAL SERVICE

34995      MCMASTER CARR SUPPLY CO       10/01/20 WW tubing                 255-43200.570                  216.11    32927 02/26/21

                                                  4641473                   MAINTENANCE OTHER

06675      NATIONAL BUSINESS TECHNOL     02/19/21 Copier usages 1/18-2/17/2 255-43200.442                   43.85    32932 02/26/21

                                                  IN408803                  Rental of Equipment

V2093      SLACK CHEMICAL COMPANY IN     02/17/21 3457 Gal 50% Caustic 6/30 255-43200.619                 8432.86    32947 02/26/21

                                                  416150                    CHEMICALS

23485      YIPES!  AUTO ACCESSORIES      12/18/20 parts                     255-43331.004                  534.65    32959 02/26/21

                                                  74969401                  Plow Truck (With crane)

27420      DAVE WHITCOMB'S SERVICE C     02/23/21 Service truck VSI 2015 Ch 256-43200.432                   80.00    32895 02/26/21

                                                  24233                     VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

07010      GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP     02/11/21 GMP Non Solar Multi Accou 256-43200.622                  561.59    32910 02/26/21

                                                  0206201221                ELECTRICAL SERVICE

03070      MINUTEMAN PRESS               11/23/20 11/2020 UB Bills          256-43200.536                 1239.14    32930 02/26/21

                                                  52433                     POSTAGE
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                                                                                                      -----------

                                Report Total                                                            407028.04

                                                                                                      ===========

...



     

 

 
 

MEETING SCHEDULES              2/19/2021 
DUE TO THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC, ALL MEETINGS ARE HELD ONLINE UNTIL FURTHER NOTICE 

TOWN SELECTBOARD MEETINGS VILLAGE TRUSTEES MEETINGS JOINT MEETINGS 

March 9, 2021—6:30 PM VB Regular Cathy 

March 15, 2021—6:30 PM SB Regular Cathy 

March 22, 2021—6:30 PM JT Special Cathy 

March 23, 2021—6:30 PM VB Regular Cathy 

April 5, 2021—6:30 PM SB Regular Cathy 

April 7, 2021—7:00 PM Village Annual Meeting Cathy 
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